n

L

2017

Annual Report #Fik

@w

SAITE GROUP
TEEHEEFRLD A

China Saite Group Company Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

(BT BRI AT E R F])
Stock Code B3X5%: 153



Contents

Corporate Profile

Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Profile of Directors and Senior Management
Corporate Governance Report

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five-Year Financial Summary

B &

[FEHN

DEEHR

IRBEE
EEENWR DN
EEKaRERZEENT
EEER®RSE

ExERE
BYRBERE
GERBERHEMEERER

REBMBMRR K
FERERBHE
FERERER
REMBERRME
AEPHBRE

02
03
06
08
27
32
50
66

74
76
77
79
152



02

293

Corporate Profile
RNFREN

China Saite Group Company Limited (“China Saite” or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries the “Group”) is
an integrated steel structure and prefabricated
construction solution service provider headquartered in
Yixing, Jiangsu Province, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). It has an operation history of nearly 20 years.
The Group’s integrated construction solution services are
customized to meet the quality, technical specifications
and requirements of different projects, and span from
design plan, including fabrication and assembly of steel
structure parts and prefabricated construction,
transportation, and to the installation of materials onsite
and after-sales services. According to an industry report
prepared by Ipsos Hong Kong Ltd., China Saite was the
second largest prefabricated construction service provider
and the third largest steel structure construction service
provider in Jiangsu Province, in terms of revenue in
2012.

The Group commenced to undertake prefabricated
construction projects in late 2010 and enjoys a first-
mover advantage in the PRC prefabricated construction
industry. Prefabricated construction is one of the
advanced types of construction method deploying a
majority of structural components pre-produced and
standardised in factory for ready assembling at the work
site. The Group’s prefabricated construction solution was
mainly provided to domestic high-rise commercial and
residential buildings and social security housing projects.

China Saite has been accredited as a Grade One Steel
Structure Engineering Professional Contractor, the highest
national qualification, by the Ministry of Housing since
November 2005. This enables China Saite to undertake
all kinds of steel structure projects without limitation in
span, contract sum, construction area or total weight of
construction in the PRC. The Group has participated in a
wide range of steel structure projects, including bridges,
train stations, stadiums, exhibition centres, factory
premises etc.

China Saite Group Company Limited FEFEFEE AR QA
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Corporate Information
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DIRECTORS =)

Executive Directors HITESE

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (Chairman) BEBEE(EE)

Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (Chief Executive Officer) BE/Nog o A (7T A )

Mr. Xu Fanghua REERE

Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYXHTES

Mr. Xu Jiaming RRBARE

Mr. Luk Chi Shing (appointed on 3 January 2017) B A5 AR SE A (R20174F1 H3H EZ (T)
Mr. Chen Tiegang (resigned on 26 May 2017) PR 85 80 2% 4 (1201745526 H B (F)
Mr. Eddie Hurip (appointed on 31 May 2017) ESE R E(R2017F5H31HEZ (F)
COMPANY SECRETARY ANEWME

Ms. Ko Hong Ting (resigned on 1 April 2017) BEEEIE 2+ (R2017F481H BET)
Ms. Foo Man Yee Carina (appointed on 1 April 2017) BEEL L (R017F4F1HEZ (F)
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES ERERE

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang BEmEE

Ms. Ko Hong Ting (resigned on 1 April 2017) BEEELZ+ (Ro017F451H B T)
Ms. Foo Man Yee Carina (appointed on 1 April 2017) BEEL L (R2017F451HEZ (F)
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER B 7% 48 B

Mr. Sin Kin Hong Edward (appointed on 9 January 2017) BB RR Se HE (R20174E1 F9H #EZ (F)*
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREE®

Mr. Luk Chi Shing (Chairman) B AR AR 8 (F )

Mr. Xu Jiaming IREBAKE

Mr. Eddie Hurip EEREE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEES

Mr. Eddie Hurip (Chairman) EHEREE(EE)

Mr. Luk Chi Shing B 7R AR 5 A

Mr. Shao Xiaogiang BB/ o o A

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZES

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (Chairman) BEBEE(EE)

Mr. Xu Jiaming RERBAZAE

Mr. Eddie Hurip EEREE

* Mr. Sin Kin Hong Edward resigned in March 2018 * B E R 2018 4 3 ABHE

Annual Report 2017 =% — t F F 03



Corporate Information

DRAEH

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

HEADQUARTER AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 88 Saite Road
Gaocheng Industrial Park
Yixing

Jiangsu Province

The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Unit 6105

61/F, The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO
HONG KONG LAW

Chiu & Partners

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation
(Yixing Gaocheng Branch)

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
(Yixing Chengzhong Branch)

Jiangsu Yixing Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
(Gaocheng Branch)

Bank of Shanghai Co., Ltd. (Wuxi Branch)

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Fl., Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, PO Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman lIslands

STOCK CODE

153

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chinasaite.com.cn

Corporate Information

REEHR

EERNBFERLRTE

BEBSEELABRAR
BB

SR ANBRI183H

& F e 221

HEFEROBFETE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Fl., Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, PO Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

R4 K 5%

153

NGRS

www.chinasaite.com.cn

Annual Report 2017 —Z —+ FFf 05



06

3

Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of China Saite, | am pleased to present the
annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017.

The year of 2017 signifies the Company’s achievement of
laying the foundation for long-term development. Looking
forward, the Group intends to gradually develop its
principal business into three pillar sectors, i.e. steel
structure, prefabricated construction and investment, the
synergy of which is expected to further boost the
Company’s development.

The year of 2017 is crucial to the PRC’s economic
transformation and upgrade with a focus on strengthening
the quality of economic growth at a slower pace of
growth. Against this macroeconomic environment, the
Group’s steel structure business saw decline in its
performance while the prefabricated construction business
recorded steady growth in revenue and gross profit in
2017.

Regarding the Thirteenth Five-Year Plan (“TFYP”)
approved by the PRC government, the focus of the
national development strategy includes the speed up of
international cooperation on Eurasia infrastructure
construction. The set-up of Asian Infrastructure
Investment Bank (“AllB”), which aims to support the
building of infrastructure in the Asia-Pacific region, as well
as the One Belt One Road (“OBOR”) development
framework in the PRC, which focuses on connectivity and
cooperation among countries primarily in Eurasia, are
perfect embodiments of the national strategy and the
outbound business development trend. We are striving to
take the opportunities to expand our steel structure
business to areas outside Jiangsu Province, and capture
more orders from overseas projects.

China Saite Group Company Limited T E & EE AR QG
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Diversity and globalisation are the Group’s mid-term and
long-term development directions. In view of China’s effort
in deepening its supply-side structural reform, the Group
will seize the opportunity to develop its potential to the
fullest by uniting all the co-workers of the Company and
fortifying the cooperation with its business partners and
build up an extensive business network including but not
limited to areas of cooperation in property development
and green building which will in turn bring more strategic
value to the Group.

We believe that well-established operational strategies and
a management team with strong execution are the keys to
sustainable development amid uncertain economic
conditions. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
express my heartfelt thanks to the staff of China Saite for
their contribution to the Group in the past year and to our
shareholders for their continuous support. With 2018
expected to be a year full of opportunities and
challenges, the Group is dedicated to creating greater
value for its shareholders.

Jiang Jiangiang
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2018

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

As a provider of integrated construction solutions using
steel structures and prefabricated components, the
Group’s integrated construction solutions are highly
customised to meet the technical specifications,
requirements and demands of different projects and
customers, through the provision of a wide range of
services, including customised design, secondary detailed
design, compilation, installation, and after-sales services.

Our steel structure solutions are mainly focused on the
construction of large-scale public structures (i.e. sports
stadiums, convention and exhibition centres, airports, and
railway stations), bridges (such as railway bridges,
highway bridges, landscape bridges, cross-river bridges
and cross-sea bridges), large-scale factory premises,
industrial park zones, logistics park zones, etc..

Our prefabricated construction solutions are mainly
focused on the construction of social security housings
and public structure projects in the urbanisation process
driven by the PRC government.

aliny: -
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2017, the total investment of fixed assets (excluding
agricultural households) in the PRC amounted to
approximately RMB63,168.4 billion (2016: RMB59,650.1
billion), representing an increase of approximately 5.9% as
compared with that of previous year, the lowest growth
rate since 2001. The Gross Domestic Product (the “GDP”)
growth rate during the year under review reached
approximately 6.9% on a year on year basis. The overall
macroeconomic environment has affected the demand for
construction materials and related services to a certain
extent. The management of the Group would adjust the
business strategies to cope with the challenges that the
Group is facing under any circumstances.

During the year under review, due to the slow growth of
the PRC’s economy, the Group’s revenue derived from
steel structure business recorded a decline of 22.2%,
which is mainly derived from decline in number of
construction projects in relation to bridges in the PRC.

Regarding the Group’s prefabricated construction
business in 2017, restricted from the slowdown of the
PRC economic environment and the inflation of
production costs, the Group’s revenue and gross profit
derived from this business segment was maintained at a
stable level when compare to last financial year.
Nevertheless, the Group has continued its strategic
expansion on its prefabricated construction segment after
acquisition of JLERFEIEFTA EHM B R Q7] (Jiangsu Qifeng
New Building Materials Company Limited*®) (“Jiangsu
Qifeng”) in 2015.

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2017 amounted to approximately RMB1,411.7 million
(2016: RMB1,650.8 million). Gross profit for the year
under review amounted to approximately RMB359.9
million (2016: RMB428.3 million) and average gross profit
margin was approximately 25.5% (2016: 25.9%). Profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB227.2 million (2016: RMB288.3 million).
Basic earnings per Share for the year under review were
approximately RMB9.77 cents (2016: basic earnings per
Share: RMB14.13 cents).

The Board did not recommend any final dividend payment
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to the
shareholders (2016: nil).

*

for translation purposes only

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Steel structure

Characterised by its strength, durability, flexibility in
layout, low pollution and recyclability, steel structure has
been widely applied in the construction of factory
premises, bridges, sports stadiums, convention and
exhibition centres, airports, railway stations and other
various infrastructures since the development of steel
structure construction in the PRC in the late 1990s.
According to the list of top 100 construction enterprises
in Jiangsu Province issued by Jiangsu Provincial
Department of Construction, the Group ranked among the
top ten steel structure construction service providers in
Jiangsu Province.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue of
the Group from steel structure business amounted to
approximately RMB848.3 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 22.2% as compared with RMB1,090.3
million in the previous year. During the year under review,
gross profit margin for steel structure business decreased
by 2.5 percentage points from 21.1% to 18.6% due to
the inflation of production costs. The completed steel
structure parts for the year under review amounted to
approximately 74,100 tons, representing a decrease of
approximately 31.0% from approximately 107,372 tons in
2016.

During the year under review, our Group mainly focused

on construction projects in Jiangsu, Shandong, Shanghai,
Cambodia and Pakistan for its steel structure business.

China Saite Group Company Limited FEFEFEE AR QA
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In 2017, the Group completed 14 (2016: 22) steel
structure projects, details of which are set out as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

20174F » 7N 5 & 52 A 1418 (20164 « 221@) i 4 1
BHE  FBHEIOT

Number of projects completed

EIBEBEHE
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BILLEE
Type of project 2016
EEE® 20164
Public structures NHEZE 4 7
Export orders of steel structure g B 0T E 2 5
Bridges g2 0 3
Factories %= 8 7
Total st 14 22

During the year under review, the number of steel
structure projects completed was decreased by 8 when
compared to 2016. Decreases in both the number of
projects completed and revenue derived from bridges
projects, export orders and public structures projects are
recorded. The number of bridges projects completed
during the year under review amounted to nil (2016: 3),
representing a decrease of 3 projects on a year on year
basis, and the revenue generated from completed bridges
projects decreased by 100.0% from approximately
RMB176.5 million to nil. The number of export orders of
steel structure projects completed during the year under
review amounted to 2 (2016: 5), representing a decrease
of 3 projects on a year on year basis, and the revenue
generated from completed export orders of steel structure
projects decreased by approximately 65.0% from
approximately RMB155.9 million to approximately
RMB54.5 million. The number of public structures projects
completed during the year under review amounted to 4
(2016: 7), representing a decrease of 3 projects on a year
on year basis, and the revenue generated from completed
public structures projects decreased by approximately
45.1% from approximately RMB204.1 million to
approximately RMB112.0 million. However, the number of
factories project completed during the year under review
amounted to 8 (2016: 7), representing an increase of 1
project on a year on year basis, and the revenue
generated from completed factories projects increased by
341.9% from approximately RMB113.5 million to
RMB501.5 million. The revenue growth in factories
projects outweighed the decline of bridges projects,
export orders and public structures projects.

REBEFE T ILHMABEER S$EEH2016F 8T
FAE - c TTHEHEARBRER - HOFE
MAHEEBEENKRSHYERRD - REEFE -
TIBREE#E AT (20164 : 318) « IRF R I
3 M IBRBEELENREENARE
176,500,0007T J& 2 100.0% £ = - PAEI B F E » 5%
TM&EBHEHORTEEB 812 A28 (2016%F : 5
B)  BERAE  MELMEFHEFHOTEIES
EAERURZEHBDH AR 1559000007 7 4 49
65.0% %= %) A R #54,500,0007T - REIBEFEE @ 7=
TAHBELIERHRE A48 (20165  71H) » HEF
BASE  MEIAXBREHEEENKRETHOA
R #204,100,0007T J& 4 #45.1% %= #) A R &
112,000,0007C AT - REIEFE - T LK E A
B # & A81E (20164 : 71H) » W FIEI1IE M5
THEHEEEE/M KA ARE113,500,0007T
#IN341.9% = A K #501,500,0007T ° &= H B #
B RIEEBREE HOFTERAHKRBEER
ER0N R
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

In terms of geographical analysis of the steel structure
business, the number of completed projects in Jiangsu
Province decreased by one project when compared to
2016, i.e. 8 (2016: 9) projects. The revenue generated
from completed projects in Jiangsu Province decreased
by approximately 12.0% on a year on year basis from
approximately RMB310.8 million to approximately
RMB273.5 million. The number of completed projects
outside the PRC decreased by 3 projects when compared
to 2016, i.e. 2 (2016: 5) projects. The revenue generated
from completed projects in the respective geographical
region decreased by approximately 65.0% on a year on
year basis from approximately RMB155.9 million to
approximately RMB54.5 million. On the other hand, the
Group recorded an increase in revenue generated from
the PRC regions outside Jiangsu Province, which
outweighed the decrease in revenue generated from
projects in Jiangsu Province and outside the PRC. In
2017, the number of completed projects in the PRC
outside Jiangsu Province decreased by 4 projects when
compared to 2016, i.e. 4 (2016: 8) projects. However, the
revenue generated from completed projects in the
respective geographical region increased by
approximately 85.4% on a year on year basis from
approximately RMB183.3 million to approximately
RMB339.9 million.

Nevertheless, the Group’s revenue generated from project
in progress as at year end had decreased from
approximately RMB440.3 million to approximately
RMB180.3 million, being a decrease of 59.1%, which is
mainly due to the fact that a lot of factories projects were
completed during the year.

As at 31 December 2017, the steel structure projects in
progress are set out as follows:

RMEREBNEITME  IHEANTIE
B # = A8 (20164 : 91H) + 820164 i L —
Bel#MmEAT IHEEELANKZEZROARE
310,800,000 % F & 4 #912.0% % # A R #&
273,500,0007T e REI AN MTETHE HE A
218 (20164F : 518) » 20164 Ji 318 » & b & 58
TIEEEE /B4 A RE155,900,0007T 3% F
> #)65.0% F #) A R #54,500,000T c B — 5
- AEBRNIHREUIINTEBREESADKES
Frigmm - WK TaRE PRI RIEE EE
By U 25 Rk D o FR20174F » ST Bk A LA SN B b & AY
£ LIE B & 2 5418 (20164 : 81H) » B2016%FE i
DAt c AT FHEETEEEEMNWEBHDHOA
R #183,300,0007T 1% F 1% I 4985.4% &= §) A R ¥
339,900,0007T, °

R AREBRFRNERBEMEEMKZEA
4 A K #440,300,0007T & L B H A R ¥
180,300,0007T * & 1859.1% * T Z AR Z A M &
BERFARTIHTER-

R2017F12A31H - & BAERZEE A LOT :

Number of projects in progress

EEEBHE
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLLEE
Type of project 2016
EEHHER 20164
Public structure AP SEE 1 —
Export orders of steel structure AR OEE 3 —
Bridges BB 1 —
Factories & = 3 3
Total st 8 3

The above-mentioned steel structure projects in progress
are expected to be completed in 2018.

China Saite Group Company Limited T E & EE AR QG
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Prefabricated construction mainly involves the
preproduction of major structural components, such as
columns, beams, wall panels, floor panels, stairs and
balcony, etc., in factory and the direct assembly of such
components at work sites. Compared to traditional steel
and concrete structures which are fabricated on work
sites, prefabricated construction has better prefabrication
capability, higher accuracy, stronger shock resistance,
shorter construction lead-time, and a higher degree of
environmental friendliness, which are in perfect tandem
with the objectives of environmental protection in the
PRC, particularly in green construction areas. With the
encouragement and support of the PRC government
through various policies, the Group believes that
prefabricated construction is set to become a major trend
in the development of the construction industry.

The Group is one of the largest prefabricated
construction service providers in Jiangsu Province in terms
of revenue. Following diligent efforts over the years, the
Group obtained a number of patented technologies in
prefabricated construction.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
completed 509,200 square metres (“sgq.m.”) of
prefabricated construction materials, compared to
501,548 sg.m. in 2016, an increase of approximately
1.56% was recorded. The revenue from prefabricated
construction projects amounted to approximately
RMB563.5 million in 2017 (2016: RMB560.5 million),
representing an increase of approximately 0.5% over the
previous year.

The Group has the competitive edges in terms of
technology and as a first mover in the prefabricated
construction business. Against the backdrop of the
government’s policies on encouraging the construction
industry to improve energy-saving, environmental
protection and cost-efficiency and its vigorous dedication
to the construction of the social security housing, the
Group gradually expanded the development of this
business during the previous years. During the year under
review, this business segment contributed approximately
RMB563.5 million of the Group’s total revenue for the
year, as compared with approximately RMB560.5 million
in the previous year. The revenue generated in this
segment accounted for approximately 39.9% of the
Group’s total revenue, which is increased from
approximately 34.0% recorded in last year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN
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As part of the Group’s business expansion plan in
prefabricated construction, the Group acquired Jiangsu
Qifeng at a consideration of RMB110 million in 2015. The
principal asset of such company is a piece of land
located in Yixing, Jiangsu Province, PRC with an area of
approximately 53,000 sg.m. and certain plant, machinery
and equipment. Upon completion of the acquisition, the
assets of Jiangsu Qifeng were used as the Group’s
prefabricated construction workshop, which enhanced the
level of automation of fixed equipment therein and
improved the overall operational efficiency. The
management continued to expand the Group’s operation
size of the prefabricated construction business and
believed that the continuous development can facilitate its
business growth and market penetration in the PRC.

In 2017, the Group engaged in 10 (2016: 10)
prefabricated construction projects, of which all projects
were residential projects with a booked revenue of
approximately RMB563.5 million (2016: RMB560.5 million).

Contract amounts of steel structure projects
and prefabricated construction projects of the
Group in 2017 in comparison with those in
the previous year

2017
20174

Steel
structure
projects
HER
R
RMB’000
ARETT
Contract value of backlog FOARI

at the beginning of the year ER&E 289,047
Value of new contracts HEREE 768,393
Revenue recognised BEREANE 848,253

Contract value of backlog at FRARIARGHE
the end of the year 209,187

Prefabricated
construction

projects

2KE
ARES
BREH

RMB’000

ARBTR

446,002
389,783
563,492

272,293

EARGSEERBABHREXEBERNEDN
— BB 5 AN &= @ 20155 LK B AR K
110,000,000 B T ERIEIE - Z AR EZE E
BARFETIHAEEMGHEES H£49/453,000
FHKRR L ARETEHE - #eS RaRE - Rk
BEEEKE TIHEEBNEEARASEEER
EEBH YRS THEANBTRENSFLRE
E o RetEEEERR - EREBHEEREAE
ErERENEEEEEBNECERE  WHEE

FEZRRERETHEBERRMBHZER -

20174 - N & B # 171018 (20164 : 101E) & # 2
TBRIEHEEEE  MTEYNATEEE  BERR
W 2% 49 A R #563,500,0007T (20164 : A R #&
560,500,0007T) °

AEER0M7EFNAEREBERERER
HBUHEERENSRERRELFELR

Year ended 31 December Changes in

BE0ANBLER the total amount
2016 for

20165 this reporting

period as

Steel  Prefabricated compared with

structure  construction the previous

projects projects Total year

2ERER AREH

AEEE R aeH

gt HE BEER @ b LR
GUGHOON RMB'O00  RMB'OOD  RMB'000 (%)
IGHLESHN\RUTE  ARBTLE ARMTR (%)
735,049 122,086 169,799 291,885 151.8
1,158,176 1,257,224 836,700 2,093,924 447
1,411,745 1,090,263 560,497 1,650,760 -145
481,480 289,047 446,002 735,049 -34.5

During the year under review, the number of new contract
signed and the total contract revenue of new contracts
entered into by the Group was 24 (2016: 24) and
approximately RMB1,158.2 million (2016: RMB2,093.9
million), respectively. The average contract revenue of the
signed contracts decreased to approximately RMB48.3
million in 2017 from approximately RMB87.2 million in
2016.

China Saite Group Company Limited FEFEFEE AR QA

REBEFE AFSEEENHMAERK
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The closing contract value of backlog in 2017 decreased
to approximately RMB481.5 million as compared with the
closing value in 2016 of approximately RMB735.0 million.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
revenue was approximately RMB1,411.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB239.0
million or 14.5% as compared with that for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

The following table sets out the breakdown of the
Group’s revenue in terms of steel structure projects and
prefabricated construction projects for each of the years
indicated:

Construction of &
— Steel structure projects - HEBEE
— Prefabricated construction projects

Total @t

- PREBREMFEEER

Management Discussion and Analysis
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EA20164F F & #9 A R #735,000,0007T tb & » 2017
FFEFARAEAZTIARESBRIZHDARE
481,500,0007T ©

Bt %5 1B R

Uy =
HZE2017F12A31H L FE - AEEHKREN A

A R #1,411,700,0007T * & & £2016F 1273180
1EFER A # A R #239,000,0007T 814.5% °

TRENZATFEAEENMGSEERE 2K
FERBMFEERBMKEHA:

For the year ended 31 December

HE12A31BLERE
2017 2016
20174 2016

Revenue Revenue
Percentage Percentage
RMB’000 (%) RMB’000 (%)
W 23 g
ARBTT AN ARB T 15 £6(%)
848,253 60.1 1,090,262 66.0
563,492 39.9 560,497 34.0
1,411,745 100.0 1,650,760 100.0

The revenue attributable to steel structure projects
decreased by 22.2% from approximately RMB1,090.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
approximately RMB848.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2017. Among different types of projects,
the Group recorded a revenue of RMB287.1 million (2016:
RMB536.4 million) generated from both completed and
uncompleted construction projects of bridges, export
orders and public structures, which outweighed the
increase in revenue generated from construction projects
of factories from approximately RMB553.9 million in 2016
to approximately RMB561.2 million in 2017.

The revenue attributable to prefabricated construction
projects increased by 0.5% from approximately RMB560.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
approximately RMB563.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2017.

i 45 1 78 B FE(h = B 22016F12A31H IEF
€ # A R #1,090,300,0007C & L22.2%%F & &
201712 A31H I F [ %) A K #848,300,0007T °
RNEBBEBED AEBEEEXERATEXOBER -
M AETE kA EEIE B E A AR287,100,000
JC (20164F : A R #536,400,0007T) 2 25 » I 5 §4
MEEZEBEBEEENM KT HA0FEHNARE
553,900,0007T 1 /i £20174F #) A R #561,200,000
5o

SREBEREGELIER EHKEHEZE2016F
12A31H 1L F[E %) A R ¥560,500,0007T # 110.5%
E B Z2017F12A31H IF F E H A R ¥
563,500,0007T °
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The following table sets out the breakdown of the
Group’s gross profit and gross profit margin (“GP margin”)
in terms of steel structure projects and prefabricated
construction projects for each of the two years ended
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017:

EMRENR

TR FPEE2016F12A318 M20174F12 A31
AtMEFESFAESENMERERD 2%
TEREHEREBEEMNEMEREMNE(EFE])H
4 -

For the year ended 31 December
HEZ12ABLER
2017 2016

in

Construction of

AX
— Steel structure projects - HEBEE
— Prefabricated construction projects - 2ERBEEFELEEE
Total B

20174 20164
GP margin GP margin
Percentage Percentage
RMB’000 (%) RMB’000 (%)
EH=x FEM*
ARETR AL ARET 15 E6(%)
157,446 18.6 230,265 21.1
202,462 35.9 198,027 35.3
359,908 25,5 428,292 25.9

The gross profit attributable to steel structure projects
amounted to approximately RMB157.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017, represented a decrease of
31.7% from approximately RMB230.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The GP margin of steel
structure projects decreased from approximately 21.1%
for the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately
18.6% for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
decrease was mainly due to the increase in the
production costs of steel structure when compared with
2016.

The revenue attributable to prefabricated construction
projects increased by approximately 0.5% from
approximately RMB560.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2016 to approximately RMB563.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The gross profit
increased by approximately 2.3% from approximately
RMB198.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
to approximately RMB202.5 million for the year under
review. The GP margin attributable to prefabricated
construction projects increased from approximately 35.3%
for the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately
35.9% for the year ended 31 December 2017,
representing an increase of 0.6 percentage points.

The Group’s overall GP margin decreased from
approximately 25.9% for the year ended 31 December
2016 to approximately 25.5% for the year ended
31 December 2017, mainly due to lower GP margin of
steel structure resulted in the current year.
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HE2017F12AB EFEMMABIER BLE
F 49 5 N R #157,400,0007T © 8 & £2016F12 5
31H IEFE £ A R #230,300,0007T 55 431.7% °
4B ERMENEHRE Z2016F12A31H IEF
E4921.1%F L & 8 £2017F 128310 I FE 4
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Ho016F BFTIEEFTHE »

HE2017F12AA L FE 2R BEBHEE
EE EEWZBEE2016F12A31IB IEEEH A
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563,500,0007T ° [2] B8 F £ N E 7 fB & £2016F 12
A31H8 It FE #) A R #198,000,0007 _t F 492.3%
ZEH AR ¥202,500,0007T ° R FEREFIEAR
EAES ENZE B E E2016F12A31B IEFE D
35.3% F F+t & B E2017F12A31H It F E 4
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
other income of approximately RMB10.0 million (2016:
RMB9.7 million) was derived from sales of scrapped
materials and interest income on bank deposits.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the total
selling, marketing and administrative expenses were
approximately RMB41.3 million (2016: RMB33.7 million),
represented an increase of approximately RMB7.6 million.
The increase was mainly resulted from (i) increase of
approximately RMB2.0 million regarding the selling and
marketing expenses due to exploration of new co-
operation partners; (i) increase in audit, legal and
professional fees of approximately RMB12.1 million
derived from issuance of bonds and shares during the
year; (i) increase in staff costs as a result of inflation in
the PRC; and (iv) reversal of provision of financial
guarantee amounting to RMB5.0 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
finance costs of approximately RMB7.4 million (2016:
RMB6.6 million) was derived from bonds issued during the
current year and short-term borrowings brought forward
from prior years. The creditors regarding the bonds and
the short-term borrowings are independent third parties to
the Group. The issued bonds and borrowings were
unsecured, interest bearing at rates ranging from 2.0% to
9.0% and repayable between 2018 to 2025.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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HE2017F12A31BEFE  AEBNE M KA
49 A R #410,000,0007T (20164 : A B #9,700,000
TO) TR B BEREE RIRITIE A B A -

REE2017F12A831BIEFE » BEE - @R
BB 2 49 A A R #41,300,0007T (20164 : AR
33,700,0007T) * #& A0 49 A R #7,600,0007T © & N
FTERHROERITASERHSINEEREHEA
049 A R #2,000,0007T ¢ (iVFREITES K
BOEENES EFELREEBRENHARE
12,100,0007T : (i) BI@AR < 8 TA AR K(iv)
BT 75 & R B % 4 0] A R #5,000,0007T °

RE Z2017F12A31B L FE AEBHARE
7,400,0007t (20164F : A X #6,600,0007T) &) Bf 75
AT RERAFERNETHNESNBBEFE
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The net profit attributed to the owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to
RMB227.2 million (2016: RMB288.3 million), resulted in a
basic profit per share for the year ended 31 December
2017 of RMB9.77 cents (2016: RMB14.13 cents),
representing a decrease in profit attributed to the owners
of the Company by 21.2%. The decrease in profit was
resulted from the net effect of (i) decrease in revenue and
gross profit as described above; (ii) increase in
impairment loss on trade receivables; and (iii) increase in
administrative expenses and finance costs, which was
mainly attributable to the increase of audit, legal and
professional fees and the financing activities carried out
during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
net cash from operating activities was approximately
RMB2.0 million (2016: cash used in operating activities of
RMB191.7 million) and the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents at the year end was approximately RMB757.3
million (2016: RMB779.3 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had current assets
of approximately RMB2,572.7 million (2016: RMB2,313.9
million) and current liabilities of approximately RMB269.6
million (2016: RMB264.6 million). The current ratio (which
is calculated on the basis of current assets over current
liabilities) was 9.5 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 8.7).

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2017 was
approximately RMB2,608.6 million (2016: RMB2,335.6
million). As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s issued
share capital was HK$233.1 million (31 December 2016:
HK$224.2 million) with 2,330.7 million (2016: 2,241.8
million) Shares in issue.

Total borrowings (including issuance of bonds) were
approximately RMB152.8 million as at 31 December 2017
(2016: RMB80.6 million), which were mainly incurred for
expansion of the existing business of the Group. Such
borrowings were mainly denominated in HK$. Borrowings
are carried at fixed interest rates ranging from 2.0% to
9.0% (2016: 8.0% to 12.4%) per annum and repayable
from 2018 to 2025.
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HZE2017F12A31B It FE - AR A A AEML
i | A A B #0227 ,200,0007T (20164 : A B &
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcement on
20 January 2017, the Group had acquired a total
number of 1,140 shares of Fire Scorpion Limited,
representing 11.17% of the total issued share capital of
Fire Scorpion Limited, at a total consideration of
HK$58,589,000, which was satisfied by the Group by (i)
allotment and issuance of a total number of 88,947,935
consideration shares of the Company to the seller based
on the issue share price of HK$0.58 per share of the
Company, representing approximately 3.82% of the then
issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
issue of the consideration shares; and (i) HK$7,000,000
settled by cash.

As referred to the Company’s announcements dated
14 August 2017 and 1 December 2017, the Company
had entered into placing agreements with the two placing
agents pursuant to which the placing agents agreed to
act as the placing agent, on a best effort basis, for the
purposes of arranging placees to subscribe or enter into
direct subscription agreement with the Company for the
bonds up to an aggregate principal amount of
HK$50,000,000 and HK$150,000,000, respectively. As at
31 December 2017, the Company had issued bonds with
a principal amount of HK$134,900,000. Details are set out
in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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As referred to the Company’s announcement dated
31 January 2018, the Company had entered into a note
purchase agreement with several institutional investors
pursuant to which such investors agreed to subscribe for
the bond in an aggregate principal amount of
US$32,000,000 issued by the Company. Under the note
purchase agreement and the bond, Mr. Jiang Jiangiang,
the chairman, an executive Director and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, as the personal guarantor,
has to beneficially hold, directly or indirectly, at least
35.0% of the total voting power of the Company
throughout the term of the bond. Details are set out in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has adopted a prudent treasury policy and
thus maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the
year. The Group strives to reduce credit risk by
performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of
the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the
Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can
meet its funding requirements from time to time.

During the year under review, except for investments in
subsidiaries, a joint venture, and an available-for-sale
investment as described below section headed “Material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies”, the Group did not hold any significant
investment in equity interests in any other company.
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcement on
20 January 2017, the Group had acquired a total of
1,140 shares of Fire Scorpion Limited, representing
11.17% of the total issued share capital of Fire Scorpion
Limited, at a total consideration of HK$58,589,000, which
was satisfied by the Group by (i) allotment and issuance
of a total of number 88,947,935 consideration Shares to
the seller based on the issue share price of HK$0.58 per
Share, representing approximately 3.82% of the then
issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
issue of the consideration Shares; and (i) HK$7,000,000
settled by cash. In order to further enhance the
competitiveness of the Group under the current economic
environment, the Group intended to diversify its income
stream to enhance shareholders’ value and the Directors
have been exploring different business opportunities in
other sectors in order to broaden the sources of income
and to boost the business performance of the Group. The
Directors believe that the acquisition of Fire Scorpion
Limited and its associates (the “Target Group”) is a good
investment opportunity for the Group to tap into the big
data logistics financial service and internet trading
platform service industries.

The Group intended to bring in the internet platform
services business of the Target Group as a new source of
income in future. The Directors are of the view that the
internet platform services business of the Target Group
can provide support to the construction projects of the
Group in the event appropriate opportunities arise.

As at 31 December 2017, other than as disclosed in note
40 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group did
not have any charge on assets.

Gearing ratio is calculated based on total debt (including
payables incurred not in the ordinary course of business)
at the year end divided by equity attributable to owners of
the Company at the year end multiplied by 100%. As at
31 December 2017, the gearing ratio of the Group was
approximately 5.9% (2016: 3.7%).
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The Group’s businesses are principally operated in the
PRC and substantially all of its transactions are
conducted in RMB and most of the Group’s assets and
liabilities are also denominated in RMB. The Group is
subject to foreign exchange rate risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a currency other than
RMB. During the year under review, the Group did not
commit to any financial instruments to hedge its exposure
to foreign currency risk and did not adopt a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Other than as disclosed in section headed “Capital
structure, liquidity and financial resources” above, there is
no major event after the reporting period.

Other than as disclosed in section headed “Capital
structure, liquidity and financial resources” above, there is
no other fund raising activities.

The use of proceeds from issued 203.8 million new
shares at a subscription price of HK$0.52 per share in
2016 (proceed of approximately RMB94.9 million) was
summarised as follows:

(i) approximately RMB49.9 million was used for
purchase of property, plant and equipment for
expansion of existing business;

(i) approximately RMB20.5 million was used for
acquisition of land use right in Anhui for expansion
of steel structure business; and

(i) approximately RMB24.5 million was used for
repayment of existing loan and interest outstanding.

The proceeds from issue of Company’s shares had been
fully utilised as at 31 December 2017.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
capital expenditure consisted of additions to property,
plant and equipment amounting to approximately
RMB49.9 million (2016: RMB23,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a capital
commitment in respect of acquisition or construction of
factory premises and production facilities for expansion of
production capacity amounting to RMB23.0 million as well
as acquisition of fixed asset for marketing & client
relationship development amounting to RMB1,593,000.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately
544 (2016: 566) employees. The related staff cost
(including remuneration of Directors in the form of salaries
and other benefits) for the year ended 31 December 2017
was approximately RMB56.4 million (2016: RMB66.4
million).

The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing industry practice.
Competitive remuneration package is offered to retain elite
employees. Our package includes salaries, medical
insurance, discretionary bonuses, share options, on-the-
job training, other benefits as well as mandatory provident
funds schemes for employees in Hong Kong and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes for employees in the
PRC.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefits schemes operated by the PRC government. Such
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific
percentage of the total monthly basic salaries to the
retirement benefits schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs (capped at
HK$1,500 per month with effect from 1 June 2014) of
each individual employee to the scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had
no forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contributions to the retirement benefits schemes set out
above.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEBENRR DN

Contingent liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2017.

Dividend

The Board does not recommend the any final dividend
payment for the year ended 31 December 2017 to the
shareholders (2016: nil).

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND
STRATEGIES

Analysing the economic trend from 2016 to 2017, the
Group was facing great challenges in the past 3 years,
with the slowdown of growth of the PRC economy.
Despite the difficulties that the Group encountered, the
management is confident to explore more opportunities in
both the steel structure business and prefabricated
construction business.
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For steel structure business, the Group will continue its
market expansion from Yangtze River Delta region to the
central and western regions of the PRC. According to the
China’s Thirteenth Five-Year Plan, the central government
of the PRC will speed up the pace of development of the
central and western regions, giving us a great opportunity
for the expansion of steel structure business
geographically. The Group has thorough cooperation with
state-owned enterprises to gradually expand its business
into other regions outside Jiangsu Province and in
particular those regions in Central and Western China
where the construction of infrastructures is relatively
lagging behind, as well as upholding its product quality
and building its brand. During the year, the Company has
formed a business relationship with Shandong Jiuyang
Industrial Stock Company Limited (ILER NLEBTE MDA
[R A ®A]) and Shanghai Civil Engineering Co., Ltd. of
CREC (F# BT ER&EEBMR QA respectively in
relation to the construction business. We believe that
upon the formation of strategic partnership with these
renowned corporations, the Group can build up an
extensive business network including but not limited to
areas of cooperation in property development and green
building which will in turn bring strategic value to the
Group. On the other hand, the implementation of One
Belt, One Road policy in the PRC is also one of the main
focus of the Group’s development strategy in the coming
years. The Group also strives for expansion in other
overseas markets including Australia, Cambodia and
Central Asian countries through cooperation with multi-
national corporations. With both the opportunities from the
government’s development direction and the Group’s
close business relationship with multi-national partners,
the Group will seize the market share in this segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEBENRR DN

For prefabricated construction business, according to the
National Plan on New Urbanisation (2014-2020) released
by the PRC State Council, certain measures will be
carried out to increase the level and the quality of the
PRC’s urbanisation in the future, aiming at having the
urbanisation rate to reach 60% by 2020. Under the effect
of increasing domestic demand on social security
housing, our management believes that the Group can
achieve a steady growth in our prefabricated construction
business segment. In previous years, we have built a
mutually beneficial trust business relationship with China
Building Material International Engineering Co. Ltd. on civil
construction projects, including the construction of social
security housing, municipal facilities, transportation, and
civic engineering. In the coming future, we target to
deepen our cooperation and to seize the opportunity in
construction of prefabricated parts in the PRC’s metro
system. The Group also aimed to further expand the
reach of its prefabricated construction business activities
to other regions outside Jiangsu Province. This will bring
a promising future for the Group’s development.

Amid the complicated economic situations in both
domestic and overseas markets, the management of the
Group will actively act in response to the markets and
continue to improve its own operation and management
efficiency to capture any opportunities arising from closer
connection of domestic macro-economic situation and the
international markets. The Group will take full advantage
of the solid foundations of its steel structure business and
prefabricated construction business while enhancing
cooperation with state-owned enterprises, central
enterprises and multi-national corporations to enrich its
business mix and broaden its income stream with a view
to boosting the Group’s business to a higher level and
creating long-term values for the shareholders.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang, aged 52, the founder of our Group,
has been being our chairman and executive Director
since 31 July 2012. He is responsible for the overall
strategic planning and management of our Group.
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang has extensive experience in the steel
structure industry, and has been engaged in such
business for over 20 vyears. Mr. Jiang Jiangiang
completed a three-year professional course in the Faculty
of Architecture at Southeast University in July 1996 and is
a practising Grade One Constructor registered with the
Ministry of Housing. He was also qualified as =% T2A0
(senior engineer) and 1= A € AT (senior economist) by JT
A A FEE (Jiangsu Province Personnel Department®) in
June 2008 and July 2009 respectively. From May 1995 to
April 1998, he served as the deputy general manager of
IBHFREELRKRIEER AR (Jangsu Yusheng
Construction and Installation Company Limited*), a
company principally engaged in construction projects and
lifting equipment installation, and during such period he
was responsible for the administration and production and
business management of such company. Since
September 1998, Mr. Jiang Jiangiang has acted as the
general manager of Saite Steel (Jiangsu). As at the date
of this report, Mr. Jiang Jiangiang was a director of China
Saite (Overseas) Company Limited, China Saite (H.K.)
Company Limited, Modern Day Holdings Limited, Saite
Steel (Jiangsu), and Jiangsu Qifeng, each being a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and Jiangsu HuaChen
Saite, being a joint venture invested by the Group. He
also served as a representative in the 12th and the 13th
Communist Party Congress of Yixing, the PRC, and 15th
and 16th People’s Congress of Yixing, the PRC.

Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (BB/J\3%), aged 43, was appointed as
our executive Director on 31 July 2012. He is also our
chief executive officer. He is responsible for the
production and technical teams of our Group. Mr. Shao is
also responsible for approving contracts with our
customers, making the decision for engaging installation
teams and production teams and whether to subcontract
any works to subcontractors.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEE/GEN

Mr. Shao graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in
management, majoring in T #£ & ¥ (engineering
management*), from JIEAZ (Jiangnan University*) in
July 2011. Mr. Shao was qualified as an engineer
(specialising in steel structures) by B T2 48 A A
(China State Construction Engineering Corporation®) in
December 2004 and a practising Grade 2 Constructor
jointly awarded by T & & A = EE (Jiangsu Province
Personnel Department®), 'L &% & 2 £ T 2 & B B
(Construction Project Administration Bureau of Jiangsu
Province®) and T & & % EE (Department of Construction
of Jiangsu Province®) in January 2007. He has more than
16 years of experience in the construction industry. He
was awarded with 8 % I8 B # 2 (Excellent Project
Manager*) for the project of ZEM Z@MM TIRAR A A
WESBRREBEMMERE TR (Taizhou Sanfu Marine
Engineering Co., Limited Hull Block Fabrication Workshop
Steel Structure Project®) in 2008. From April 1996 to
November 1999, he worked as the head of the technical
department of )T & & iMEER AR AT (Jiangsu Xiaojin
Steel Structure Construction Co., Ltd.”), a company
principally engaged in production and installation of steel
structure. He joined our Group in December 1999 and
has served as a deputy general manager and the deputy
administrative manager of Saite Steel (Jiangsu) since then,
overseeing the engineering and technical work and the
production process of our Group. As at the date of this
report, Mr. Shao was also a director of Saite Steel
(Jiangsu), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
Jiangsu HuaChen Saite.

Mr. Xu Fanghua (187 %), aged 53, appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 15 December
2015. He has over 10 years of experience in the eco-
friendly construction industry. Mr. Xu graduated from F &=
38 T K& (Nanjing University of Science and Technology)
in environmental engineering in July 2003. He was
appointed as the chairman of the board of directors and
general manager of L&k /= N EXBR AR (Jangsu
Chenli Company Limited*) in February 1991. Jiangsu
Chenli Company Limited was deregistered in January
2013. Mr. Xu then founded Jiangsu Chenli in October
2012 and has been appointed as the chairman of the
board of directors as well as the general manager of
Jiangsu Chenli since October 2012.

for translation purposes only

China Saite Group Company Limited T E & EE AR QG

BBSE R0 F7TAEERNIEAE BISIREE
HEHEEBLEN AL ER2004F128 A F HiE
STRANTIESIRMGIEERE)EE I
R2007F1AESHIHEASTE ITHAERET
BREERRIGEEREHSETN _HEEM
HEERBE HRERTEEEBI6CFLER -
B HR2008F AR Z @M TRARRAIMED
Bt ErfgE I REmMETAESFSBEICHE -
E1996F 473 £1990F 11 A Biff] - IEE /1 ES
MERRERAR (EEREMEREERTE
RMTEEE o HHA1999F12 A A E - HEFE|
BEBVTANETESREBCIEH) THRAK
B EEAEEMNTIREEAEIN ITEAREETE -
RAREBE BEENABEARRZENB QR
EEFENEBCIHR) MIHEESEFNES -

BT ELEL 535 N2015F128156A K EE A
AKRBHITEE - FRERREBEEERB10FHN
B o RITAEN2003F7TAEERERIET KEIR
RIBREE - HMONF2AEZTATIHENE
XERAFMNEESIERBEE - TIHRENE
¥ BRARN2013F1 ABUB M - iR EREER
2012F10R A 3 )T & /= 1 - W B20124F10 7 1B &
REAIHENINEESEFEHRAKE-

- B F



INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Jiaming (& % BA), aged 47, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 11 October 2013.
Mr. Xu graduated with a bachelor's degree in T % %& 12
TR(BEEE B E#) (Industrial Management Engineering
(Management Information Systems®)) from & % T 2}z
(Wuhan Institute of Engineering®) in June 1992 and
obtained a master’'s degree in business administration
from B R KE (Nanjing University) in December 2003. He
is currently a candidate for a doctorate degree in & ¥ &}
B2 T2 (Management Science and Engineering®) at &
EIE T KE (Wuhan University of Technology). He has
over 16 years of experience in corporate management
and consultancy. From January 1997 to May 1998, he
served at IRAEEEEZSEEBR A A (Nanjing Toptry
Information Industry Group Co., Ltd.¥), a company
principally engaged in software development and
information services as the head of its marketing
department, deputy manager and the head of its & F
2 E0 (department of electronic commerce). Since May
1998, he has served as the chief consultant and the
general manager of MRE MO EEEZXAEGRA A
(Nanjing Zhiyu Corporate Management Consultants
Company Limited*), a company principally engaged in
provision of business consultancy services. He acted as
the chief human resources manager of AL E REEE A
fR A7) (Red Star Home Furniture Group Limited*), a
company principally engaged in, among others, sale of
home furniture, between June 2005 and July 2007 and
the general manager of 4L EXsEEBHAANEGR QA
(Red Star Macalline International Consultancy Company
Limited*), a company principally engaged in provision of
business consultancy services, between June 2005 and
July 2007. From December 2008 to September 2010, he
also served as the management consultant and the
president of [BA £ E AR A7 (Permanent Group Co.,
Ltd.*), a company principally engaged in the manufacture
of steel structures and machineries. Since September
2010,he has acted as the corporate management
consultant of R EREZITREEBR AR (Nanjing
Fullshare Holdings Group Limited*), a company principally
engaged in construction projects.
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EEREREEE/GEN

Luk Chi Shing, aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 3 January 2017.
Mr. Luk graduated from City University of Hong Kong in
1993, with a Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy. Mr. Luk is
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Luk
had been () an independent non-executive director of
Chinese Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 8009)
since 1 February 2018; (ii) an executive director of Trillion
Grand Corporate Company Limited (formerly known as Tai
Shing International (Holdings) Limited) (stock code: 8103)
from April 2014 to March 2016; (i) an independent non-
executive director of Interactive Entertainment China
Cultural Technology Investments Limited (formerly known
as China Mobile Games and Cultural Investment Limited)
(stock code: 8081) from December 2011 to August 2015;
(iv) an independent non-executive director of Dafeng Port
Heshun Technology Company Limited (stock code: 8310)
from February 2014 to March 2016; (v) an independent
non-executive director of CircuTech International Holdings
Limited (formerly known as TeleEye Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 8051) from April 2015 to June 2016; and (vi)
the company secretary and financial controller of Silk
Road Energy Services Group Limited (stock code: 8250)
from January 2012 to November 2015, and the shares of
these companies are listed on the Growth Enterprises
Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Eddie Hurip, aged 59, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 31 May,
2017. He obtained a bachelor's degree in Electrical
Engineering and Computer Science from the University of
California, Berkeley and an Executive MBA degree from
the Marshall Business School of the University of
Southern California. Mr. Hurip has over ten years of
management experience in the real estate industry in both
the PRC and Hong Kong. Mr. Hurip was an executive
director of China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited
(formerly known as Shell Electric Mfg. (Holdings) Company
Limited, Hong Kong stock code: 0081) from 2006 to
2010. Mr. Hurip offered consultancy services to Nanjing
Fullshare Asset Management for the acquisition and the
resumption of trading in the shares of Fullshare Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Warderly International Holdings
Limited, Hong Kong stock code: 607) which was
completed in December 2013. Mr. Hurip retired as a non-
executive director of Fullshare Holdings Limited (Hong
Kong stock code: 607) on 31 December, 2016.

*
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Shan Jinwen (B 48 X), aged 42, joined our Group in
September 2009 and has acted as the deputy general
manager of Saite Steel (Jiangsu) responsible for the sales
and marketing activities since September 2011.

Mr. Shan completed a three-year professional course in
electronic technology engineering at Southeast University
in July 1996 and obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from SEFIEIHKZ (Macau University of
Science and Technology) in February 2004. He is also a
Grade One Constructor registered with the Ministry of
Housing. Prior to joining our Group, he acted as the
manager of the marketing department of %755 A & 28
() AR AT (BSH Home Appliances Holding (China)
Co., Ltd.*), a company principally engaged in
development and sale of home appliances and their after-
sales services, from November 1999 to June 2004. From
June 2004 to August 2009, he took up the position of
deputy administrative manager of #E$5 ™ I8 (X 8 45 1% T 12
AR F (Wuxi City Modern Steel Structure Engineering
Co., Ltd.*), a company principally engaged in production,
processing and installation of steel structures and their
supporting parts, and during such period he was mainly
responsible for the corporate management of such
company. From September 2009 to August 2011,
Mr. Shan worked as the general manager of Wuxi office
of Saite Steel (Jiangsu).

Save as disclosed herein, to best of the knowledge,
information and belief of our Directors having made all
reasonable enquiries, each of the members of our senior
management has not been a director of any public
company the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the three
years immediately preceding the date of this report.
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Corporate Governance Report
TtEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PRACTICES

The Board has committed to achieving high corporate

governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance
standards are essential in providing a framework for the
Group to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to

enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in the Appendix 14 to The Rule
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the financial

year ended 31 December 2017, except for the deviation
disclosed below:

A1

A1

A7

Code Provision

=F Al & 3C

The Board should meet
regularly and board meetings
should be held at least four
times a year at
approximately quarterly
intervals

EFeRTHETER &
EEABFRELOETN
RARNEBFERIT K

Board meetings papers
should be sent in full to all
Directors at least 3 days
before the intended date of
meeting

EEggANMRNRESR
TERAMMNRL=REH
KR 2RES

Deviation

1 B 1R L

During the year, no regularly
Board Meeting had been
fixed by the Company (i.e.
the Board meet at
approximately quarterly
intervals)

During the year, certain ad
hoc Board meetings were
held and the relevant Board
meeting papers were sent to
all Directors less than 3 days
before the date of the Board
Meeting

RER BRTETESS
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Considered Reason for deviation

RERERACMANRE

Although the Board did not fix the Board
meeting to be held at quarterly intervals, a
total of five Board Meetings had been held
by the Company in 2017. The Company
considered that the Board members were
fully informed the recent development of the
Company. The Board would ensure a
regular quarterly meeting to be held by the
Company in future to meet the CG Code
requirement.
BEEFSURETCEZTERIT —RES
g% ARABR2017FRITEHAR
EEEEZ -ARARA EFFKED
BRDEMARANITHERBERL -ES
HERALNGBESEHETETES
BOURELEERTAMNEE -

The Board members of the Company were
informed by the management of the
Company by email, by WeChat or by
phone on the updated information of
proposed ad hoc projects/transaction(s) to
be entered by the Company from time to
time. Although the meeting papers could
not be sent to the Directors at least 3 days
before the meeting, the Board members
still have sufficient information to discuss
the matters on proposed projects or
transactions of the Company. The Board
will use its best efforts to meet the CG
Code requirements.
RAAFREZENEBRARAAEEETRKE
B MEXNEFEMNEEARD A (EAH
AVKEBNER THNEHEA -&E
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c1.2

c1.2

Code Provision

= Bl 4% XX

Management should provide
all members of the Board
with monthly updates giving
a balance and
understandable assessment
of the Company’s
performance, position and
prospects in sufficient details
to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to
discharge their duties under
Rule 5.01 and Chapter 17

EREERGAMEEg LR
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HALERSREBNTE
NARUZEFAEZS LS
BEBITES0MERFEITE
FTRENRE

Deviation

fRaE 1R R

During the vyear,
management did not provide
monthly update with the
Directors regularly

RER BEEEYESAE
HRERRHEFEHR
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Considered Reason for deviation

HRESEELCMANRE

The management of the Company has
provided with all members of the Board, in
a timely manner, updates on any material
changes to the performance, position and
prospects of the Company and give
explanatory information for matters brought
before the Board.

The management of the Company regularly
communicated with the Board of Directors
including independent non-executive
Directors by email, by phone, or by Wechat
from time to time. The Company
considered that all members of the Board
had given a balanced and understandable
assessment on the Company’s
performance.
AARERBEEKKRNEESLRBKER
HEAARFTRE RARATRHEME
HEMENENRREEERNESTSM
REFHEHONHAER -
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The Company will continue to enhance its corporate
governance practices to the conduct and growth of its
business and to review such practices from time to time
to ensure that they comply with the CG Code and align
with the latest development.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has devised its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ and employees’ dealings in the
Company’s securities (the “Securities Dealing Code”) on
terms no less exacting than the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules and a warning to all Directors, senior management
and relevant employees of the Group about insider
dealing known as “Insider Dealing — Warning”.

Specific enquiry has been made with all the Directors and
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the Securities Dealing Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2017. No incident of non-compliance of the
Securities Dealing Code by the employees was noted by
the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises the following Directors:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang
(Chairman and Chairman of Nomination Committee)
Mr. Shao Xiaoqgiang (Chief Executive Officer and Member
of Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Xu Fanghua

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Xu Jiaming (Member of Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee)

Mr. Chen Tiegang (resigned on 26 May 2017)

Mr. Luk Chi Shing (appointed on 3 January 2017,
Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of
Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Eddie Hurip (appointed on 31 May 2017, Member of
Audit Committee, Chairman of Remuneration
Committee, and Member of Nomination Committee)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 27 to 31 of this report for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

None of the members of the Board is related to one
another.

The positions of chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company are held by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang respectively. The chairman provides
leadership for the Board and is responsible for overall
strategic planning and management of our Group. The
chief executive officer focuses on overseeing our
production and technical teams of our Group. Their
respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out
in writing.

Independent Non-executive Directors are responsible to
scrutinize the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and ensuring that
exercise of the board authority is within the powers
conferred to the Board under the applicable laws, Articles
of Association of the Company and rules and regulation.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board at
all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in
respect of his independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION
AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Articles 105(A) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire by rotation at each annual general meeting of
the Company at least once every three years. All retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Article 109 of the Company’s Articles of Association
provides that any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an additional Director shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election
at the meeting but shall not be taken into account in
determining the Directors or the number of Directors who
are to retire by rotation at such meeting.

Every director, including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of three years and would be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years at
the annual general meeting of the Company. Their
appointments would be reviewed by the Nomination
Committee when they were due for re-election.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board holds at least four meetings a year. The Board
convenes meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc
basis, as required by business needs. All Directors are
invited to attend the Board meetings in person or by
telephone conference.

Board papers will be given to the Board before the date
of the Board meeting by the Company Secretary with
reasonable time.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter, the matter will be dealt by a physical
Board meeting rather than a written resolution.

During the Reporting Period, the Board held a total of five
Board meetings.

ROLE AND FUNCTION OF THE
BOARD AND THE MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions, risk management, internal control systems and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising
its affairs. Directors make decisions objectively in the
interests of the Company.

Al Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of
other offices held by them and the Board regularly
reviews the contribution required from each Director to
perform his responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters
relating to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the
management.
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ACCESS TO INFORMATION

All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the services and
advice from the company secretary and senior
management. The Directors may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as a
Director and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-
facilitated briefings for directors will be arranged and
reading material on relevant topics will be issued to
directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors
received training on the following areas with an emphasis
on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed
company in compliance with the requirement of the CG
Code on continuous professional development:

REE2017F12A31B L FE  BESEESUA T
ERFHBEEERRERAETLETATHREEZ
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TEERA®RSE

tHRRESEZAG BELBEHEBZE -

Accounting/

Financial/
Risk
Corporate Management/
Governance/ Management
Updates on or Other
Laws, Rules & Professional
Regulations Skills
it M
LEEL EmER
RAERE EHENGHM
1A R R BERE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang BEmEE v -
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang AR/ og 5 A v -
Mr. Xu Fanghua R ER & v —
Independent non-executive Directors B EHITESE
Mr. Xu Jiaming RRA L E v -
Mr. Chen Tiegang BoR #2 8 5t A
(resigned on 26 May 2017) (A201745A26 8 & 1) v —
Mr. Luk Chi Shing B A5 B 5 A
(appointed on 3 January 2017) (R20175F1 ASHEZ T) v v
Mr. Eddie Hurip EHEREE
(appointed on 31 May 2017) (F201745A31H E Z 1) v v

Directors’ training is through attending in-house trainings/
seminars or reading newspapers, journals and updated
legal and regulatory news.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS’
LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to cover the Directors and officers’ risk exposure arising
out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is
reviewed annually.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under “Corporate Information” on
pages 3 to 5.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Luk Chi Shing
(Chairman) (appointed as chairman of the Committee on
3 January 2017), Mr. Xu Jiaming and Mr. Eddie Hurip
(appointed as member of the Committee on 31 May 2017).
Mr. Chen Tiegang resigned as the member of the
Committee on 26 May 2017.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems,
audit plan and relationship with external auditor, and
arrangements to enable employees of the Company to
raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, risk management,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim
and annual financial results and reports in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2017 and significant issues on
the financial reporting and compliance procedures, risk
management and internal control systems, scope of work
and re-appointment of external auditor, and arrangements
for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the external auditor and there was
no issue of significant importance requiring disclosure in
this annual report under the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor
without the presence of the executive Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Eddie
Hurip (chairman) (appointed as chairman of the
Committee on 31 May 2017) and Mr. Luk Chi Shing
(appointed as a member of the Committee on 3 January
2017), and one executive Director, namely Mr. Shao
Xiaogiang. Mr. Chen Tiegang resigned as the Chairman of
the Committee on 26 May 2017.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management, the
remuneration policy and structure for all directors and
senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her
close associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
held two meetings. It reviewed the remuneration package
of all Directors and considered the terms of appointment
of the newly Directors, and related matters.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one
executive Director, namely Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (chairman),
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Xu Jiaming and Mr. Eddie Hurip (appointed as
member of the Committee on 31 May 2017). Mr. Chen
Tiegang resigned as the member of the Committee on
26 May 2017.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of directors, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and succession planning of
directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.
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The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate selection decision will be based on
merit and contribution to the Board.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year
ended 31 December 2017 to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors, and to consider
the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for
election at the Annual General Meeting. The Nomination
Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Securities Dealing Code and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.

China Saite Group Company Limited T E & EE AR QG

ARRBEBEERETHAR(BHRETRR ﬁ% F
B et MBLEH) AREREER ST
REBBERAESERENRESSFEHNERT
fEH

RELE2017F12A31B IEFE - IERZE 8
T—REF UBRTESTIEE ﬁﬁ&@ﬁ
M&ﬁi%ﬁtﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ W E ER IR E
FRELX2ENETEENER -REZESRE
i%AEEFAHMHwaM

E=x2RARETE
fif P 3 Z B BE o

EERTAZTAMEXED.3A

EE2CRIARANEEEARRELESR &
ERRRAEEENRIRSEEEXER AR A
BRERLEERENARBERER EFX
ZTRINERBERARARNRANEEERTH AR
ERARRALEERREEHNRE -



ATTENDANCE RECORD OF
DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board and
Board Committee meetings and the general meeting of
the Company held during the year ended 31 December
2017 is set out in the table below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE EHRE
Annual
Nomination Remuneration Audit General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee  Committee Meeting
BRREE
ExzE BEEE REZEE HWEEE BHREEE XE
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (Chairman) ¥ {@#58 %t & 4/5¢ 1/1+ N/A N/A 1/1+
(£/%) TEA THEA
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang AR\ ot A 5/5 N/A 2/2 N/A 11
i B i@ A
Mr. Xu Fanghua REELE 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 11
TiE A T iE A T iE A
Mr. Xu Jiaming RERBEE 5/5 1/1 N/A 2/2 11
i
Mr. Chen Tiegang (resigned bR 30 8 25 & 1/5 1/1 2/2 1/2 1/1
on 26 May 2017) (20174
5A26H B fE)
Mr. Luk Chi Shing (appointed on B 5 A% 46 4 5/5 N/A 1/2 2/2+ 11
3 January 2017) (20175 THEA
1ASHEZ )
Mr. Eddie Hurip (appointed on L $RiR %&£ 4/5 N/A 1/1+ 1/2+ N/A
31 May 2017) (20174 TEA TR
5A31HEZ M)
+ Chairman * ES

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also
held meetings with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of executive Directors
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN
RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
Directors have ensured that the financial statements of the
Group are prepared so as to give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, the results and cash flow for
the year, and on a going concern basis in accordance
with the statutory requirements and applicable accounting
and financial reporting standards.
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The Directors also ensure timely publication of the
Group’s financial statements and aim to present a clear,
balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance and position through all its publications and
communications to the public. They are also aware of the
requirements under the applicable rules and regulations
about timely disclosure of inside information.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 66 to 72.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the external auditor
of the Company in respect of audit services and non-
audit services provided to the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to HK$1.98 million and HK$0.85 million
respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external
auditor of the Company, Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out
below:
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publications and the compliance of applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

Principles and guidelines of our risk management
framework are set for an effective and adequate approach
to be applied across the Group to manage the risks
associated with its business and operations. This
framework is designed to enhance risk management of
the Group through an integrated framework so that all
material risks faced by the Group are identified and
appropriately managed.

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing
and managing risks within its business, ensuring that
appropriate internal control for effective risk management
are implemented. The management is responsible for
overseeing the risk management and internal control
activities of the Group. The internal audit department of
the Group is responsible for evaluating the effectiveness
of the Group’s policies and procedures in relation to risk
management and internal control systems and submitting
their reports of their findings to the Board at the
meetings. The Audit Committee provides independent
review on effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and gives their
recommendation to the Board. The Board is responsible
for reviewing the internal audit report and approving
policies and procedures designed by the management.

The Group also engaged an external consultant
specialising in identifying and evaluation of significant risk
of our business and operation. The external consultant
does not have any connection with the Group and the
Board believes that their involvement could enhance the
objectivity and transparency of evaluation process. In
conjunction with our staff and senior management, the
external consultant conducts an annual assessment on
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group together with suggestion and solutions and submit
to the Board for their consideration.
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During the year under review, the management assisted
the Board in the implementation of the Group’s policies
and procedures within the Board’s delegation by
identifying and assessing the risks faced, and in the
design, operation and monitoring of suitable internal
controls to mitigate and control such risks. The Board
conducted reviews and discussed with the management
on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems as required by paragraph C.2 of
the Code, covering adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions and any resolutions for
material internal control defects.

The risk management and internal control systems are
reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis by the Audit
Committee and the executive Directors, and will be further
reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the
Board. These systems were considered effective and
adequate.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

The Group have established a system to ensure the
management and the relevant personnel have sufficient
up-to-date knowledge of relevant laws and regulations.
Under such system, the Directors and members of the
management in charge of the Group’s construction
projects shall be informed of the changes to the laws,
regulations and government policies applicable to the
Group’s business and the implications thereof by emalil
and written notice as soon as practicable and, where the
Directors consider necessary, a briefing on such changes
to the executive Directors and members of the
management in charge of the Group’s construction
projects (the “Relevant Personnel”) shall be conducted.
Moreover, the Group will organise seminars to be
attended by the Relevant Personnel semi-annually on a
compulsory basis for each of the two full financial years
after Listing disregard whether there will be any changes
to the relevant PRC laws and regulations. Thereafter,
training session would be held when there is a change or
update to the relevant PRC laws and regulations.

In addition, the Company had engaged an external PRC
legal adviser to, among others, monitor the Group’s
compliance with the PRC laws and regulations applicable
to its business operation.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and Champ Origin Limited (the
“Controlling Shareholders”), being the controlling
shareholders (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company, gave a non-competition undertaking in favour
of the Company (the “Non-competition Undertaking”).
Each of the Controling Shareholders has undertaken
under the Non-Competition Undertaking that he or it shall
provide to the Company and the Directors from time to
time (including the independent non-executive Directors)
with all information necessary for the annual review by the
independent non-executive Directors with regard to
compliance of the terms of the Non-Competition
Undertaking by the Controlling Shareholders and the
enforcement of the Non-Competition Undertaking.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed
compliance with the terms of the Non-competition
Undertaking and that during the year under review, there
was no matter which required to be deliberated by the
Board in relation to the compliance and enforcement of
the Non-competition Undertaking. The Board comprising
all the independent non-executive Directors is of the view
that such controlling shareholders have been in
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking in
favour of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring the
proper convening and conducting of the Board and Board
committee meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda,
and the Board and Board committee papers being
provided to the Directors and the relevant Board
committee members respectively in a timely manner
before the meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes
of all the Board and Board committee meetings. The
Board and Board committee minutes are available for
inspection by the Directors and the relevant Board
committee members.

Mr. Ko Hong Ting resigned as the company secretary and
Ms. Foo Man Yee of CS Legend Corporate Services
Limited, an external service provider, was appointed as
the company secretary, both with effect from 1 April
2017.

The primary contact person of the Company is Mr. Jiang
Jiangiang, the Chairman of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Ms. Foo has
attended relevant professional training to update his skills
and knowledge. She met the training requirement set out
in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate
issue at shareholder meetings, including the election of
individual directors. All resolutions put forward at
shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange
after each shareholder meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting
by Shareholders and Putting Forward
Proposals at General Meetings

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the
directors on requisition of one or more shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the
Secretary by mail to Unit 6105, 61/F, The Center, 99
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, to require an
Extraordinary General Meeting to be called by the
Directors for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Directors fail to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:
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Address: Unit 6105, 61/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
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Fax: (852) 3691 8124

BH:

Email: ir@chinasaite.com.cn
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For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit
and send the original duly signed written requisition,
notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to
the above address and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required
by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and the
investment community, and in particular, through the
Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports),
annual general meetings and other general meetings. At
the annual general meeting, directors (or their delegates
as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and
answer their enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has not made
any change to its articles of association. An up to date
version of the Company’s articles of association is also
available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is an integrated steel structure and
prefabricated construction solution service provider. Our
integrated construction solution services are customised
to meet the technical specifications and requirements of
different projects, and span from fabrication and assembly
of steel structure parts and prefabricated construction
materials at our workshops to the installation of these
materials onsite, based on the secondary design (as to
our steel structure projects) provided by us or our
customers.

The Group’s turnover is mainly derived from business
activities in the PRC. An analysis of the Group’s income
for the year is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries as at
31 December 2017 are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 73 of this report.

The state of the Group’s and the Company’s affairs at
31 December 2017 is set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position on pages 74 and 75 of this
report.

The Board do not recommend final dividend payment for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: NIL).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year is
provided on pages 8 to 26 in the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing by the company

are described on notes 33 of the consolidated financial
statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. The Group is committed to implementing
policies and measures in our daily business operations to
foster reduction of the Group’s environmental impact such
as (i) telephone conferencing meetings among Hong Kong
headquarter and PRC subsidiaries to save business travel
(i) use of recycled papers and office light-out measures
after office hours etc.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year under review, as far as the Company is
aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

The Group’s likely future development in the Company’s
business is discussed on pages 24 to 26 in the
Management Discussion and Analysis of this report.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The result, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, are summarised on
page 152 of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of properties of the Group as at 31 December
2017 are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
allotted and issued 88,947,935 ordinary shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.58 per share (being closing
price on 19 January 2017) for a total consideration of
HK$58,589,000 to Mr. He Zibin to pay the consideration
of acquiring approximately 11.17% of the enlarged issued
share capital of the Fire Scorpion Limited on 20 January
2017.

Details of the movements in share capital are set out in
“Equity-Linked Agreement” and note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DEBENTURES AND BOND ISSUED

a)

b)

Debentures

Placing of Bond on 21 July 2017

On 21 July 2017, the Group entered into
subscription agreement in relation to the placing of
bonds with a principal amount of HK$6,000,000 at
a price equal to 100% of its principal amount to an
investor, which is to the best of knowledge,
information and belief of the then Directors having
made all reasonable enquires, an independent third
party of the Company (the “Corporate Bond”). The
Corporate Bonds would mature on 21 July 2019.
The interest rate of the Corporate Bond was 8.5%
per annum. The Group received net proceeds of
HK$6,000,000, which would be used for general
working capital and general corporate purposes.

Placing of Bond on 14 August 2017

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 14 August 2017 (the “August 2017
Announcement”), the Company entered into a
Placing Agreement in relation to the placing of
Bonds up to an aggregate principal amount of
HK$50,000,000 at the issue price of 100% of the
principal amount of the Bonds. The placing ended
on the date falling six months after the date of the
Placing Agreement.

The principal terms of the placing agreement are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 14 August 2017.

Under this agreement, the Group issued Bonds | (as
defined in the August 2017 Announcement) at an
aggregate principle amount of HK$21,000,000 and
received net proceeds of HK$21,000,000, Bonds I
(as defined in the August 2017 Announcement) at
an aggregate principle amount of HK$13,500,000
and received net proceeds of HK$13,500,000 and
Bonds IV (as defined in the August 2017
Announcement) at an aggregate principle amount of
HK$20,000,000 and received net proceeds of
HK$20,000,000, during the year ended
31 December 2017. The net proceeds would be
used for general working capital and general
corporate purposes.

The Directors were of the view that the said placing
would strengthen the Company’s financial position
and provide general working capital for the Group.
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As disclosed in the announcement on 1 December
2017 (the “December 2017 Announcement”), the
Company entered into a placing agreement (the
“Pacing Agreement”) with CNI Securities Group
Limited, placing agent in relation to the placing of
the Bonds up to an aggregate principal amount of
HK$150,000,000 at the issue price of 100% of the
principal amount of the Bonds. The placing period
shall commence from the date of falling nine (9)
months after date of the Placing Agreement, or
such other period as may be agreed between the
Company and the placing agent in writing.

The principal terms of the above placing agreement
are disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 1 December 2017.

Under this agreement, the Group issued Bonds I
(as defined in the December 2017 Announcement)
at an aggregate principal amount of HK$17,000,000
and received net proceeds of HK$17,000,000
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Directors were of the view that the said placing
would strengthen the Company’s financial position
and provide general working capital for the Group.

Details of the corporate bonds issued during the
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note
27 in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

The equity-linked agreements entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year that would or may result in the Company issuing the
Company’s shares (“Share(s)”) or that required the
Company to enter into any agreements that would or may
result in the Company issuing Shares are as follows:

As disclosed in the announcement dated 16 December
2016 and 20 January 2017 respectively in relation to the
Share Purchase Agreement entered between China Saite
Capital Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company with Mr. He Zhibin and Fire Scorpoion Limited.

The allotment of 88,947,935 consideration shares at the
issue price of HK$0.557 per share was completed on
20 January 2017.
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With an aim to further develop and expand the business
scope of the Group, the Directors were of the view that
the said allotment of shares was a good opportunity to
develop the bid data logistics financial services and
internet trading platform service industries.

USE OF PROCEED

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total net
proceeds received from placing of 203.8 million new
shares at subscription price of HK$0.52 shares in 2016
after deducting fees and other expenses were RMB94.9
million. Such net proceeds were deposited at the Group’s
bank accounts. The net proceeds were used as follows:

(i) approximately RMB49.9 million was used for
purchase of property, plant and equipment for
expansion of existing business;

(i) approximately RMB20.5 million was used for
acquisition of land use right in Anhui for expansion
of steel structure business; and

(i)  approximately RMB24.5 million was used for
repayment of existing loan and interest outstanding.

The proceeds from issue of Company’s shares had been
fully utilised as at 31 December 2017.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report,
there was sufficient public float of the Company’s
securities as required under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE
OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 75 of this report. Details of
distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note
42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year
attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers
are as follows:
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Percentage of the total
purchases/sales
accounted for

HEREE
SHEBEMLL B
Purchases g
— the largest supplier — AHER 40%
— five largest suppliers combined — AREEERER 89%
Sales $HE 5
— the largest customer - &ZABFP 21%
— five largest customers combined — AABEFPAE 54%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had an interest in the five largest
suppliers or customers of the Group noted above.

At no time during the year, none of the Directors, their
close associates or shareholders (which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any interest in the customers or
suppliers disclosed above.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (Chairman)
Mr. Shao Xiaoqgiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xu Fanghua

Mr. Xu Jiaming

Mr. Luk Chi Shing (appointed on 3 January 2017)
Mr. Chen Tiegang (resigned on 26 May 2017)

Mr. Eddie Hurip (appointed on 31 May 2017)
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In accordance with Article 105(A) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Xu Fanghua and Mr. Xu Jiangming shall
retire at the Annual General Meeting. In addition, pursuant
to Article 109 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Eddie Hurip, appointed by the Board on 31 May
2017, will hold office until the next following general
meeting and will be eligible for re-election at the meeting.
All of the above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS’ CONFIRMATION

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in
respect of his independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, the Company
is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the particulars disclosed in note 41 under the
heading “Related Party Transactions” to the consolidated
financial statements, there were no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business, to which the ultimate holding
company of the Company, any of the Company’s
subsidiaries or any subsidiaries of such ultimate holding
company was a party and in which a Director or any
entitle connected with a Director (as defined in the
Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong) had, whether
directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance had been entered into
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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No contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
entered into.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS

No bank loans and other borrowings had been entered
into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(“Model Code”), are set out below:

Long and short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares

Name of Director Nature of interest

Exnsa EEME

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang

s A ZEHEEE R

Notes:

1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our
Shares.

2. These Shares were held by Keen Luck Group Limited (“Keen
Luck”), which was 100% owned by Champ Origin Limited
(“Champ Origin”).

3. Champ Origin was owned as to 51% by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang
and 49% by Mr. Jiang Yixuan.

4, As at 31 December 2017, the total issued capital of the
Company is 2,330,747,935 shares.

Interest of controlled corporations

RITER

#H2016F12A31H » AR A H
B|EI L RITER KA -

Report of the Directors

EEE®RS

] P B % A) 2 #22 IR AR ML B AT 32 @)
B ARRREREZERNAL

el
Sg_
ot
iy

» B R E A E K

EAAIB B 2 =]

#

EERFTETBRAERRSG M
BAROKEZZ2EERKXR

R2017F12A81B EERARREETHAER
RARARSEFTRAREZE (TR AEFRPEK

pIEFERAE

S {6 1) EXVED) 2 Bcfn - MR

&ﬁ%}qﬂ BERER SRR EGHEI2GREA

AIATEFEZRRAMALE  KBRELTAR

Té%kﬁaﬁ‘%@%ﬁ’]%ﬁ%# I (52257 Al

//\

BAARRRI LB ERIORRMAT

REOREERGZEFRERKXE

Approximate

percentage of

shareholding as

Number of at 31 December

Shares held 2017* Notes(s)
#2017512A31H
BB 49 B 48
Fitshik i 88 =R A Bif 5%
(%)
1,020,000,000 43.76% 2&3
Shares (L)
& A% 1

B 5

FERILIRTZALTRBEMAROD ZFE -

ZEROARREEERAA(ER DR M

EHAERERARN(ERDERE 2R -
BRAEEREERERFELEDBEESI%N
49% kS

R2017F12A81H AR AIME BHITRABE A
2,330,747,935 BB 1p o

Annual Report 2017 —%

—tFFH 57



58

Report of the Directors

EEE®RSE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
any interest or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following persons, other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company, had an interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, which were required to be recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

B ESCPTIREESN  R20178E 128318 EERA
NAIEBITHA BBEER AR 7 sk & (F AT A3 B

BE(EERELEREEEMNEXVI) 2K - 8k
i RESTEERIEESNEPE KRN EI52(5F
EARRABTEEZBRREAMALE  KRIEZ
ETFAGRTABMARNT M 2 R AE -

FERREREMATIREG KA
RO 2EZERKE

MR2017F12A318 ' BESEA  RESZSREAQA
FETBABI THALTHEREBEZSFLNE
157 B33 BREARRAIGFERREM Z AR
A RAERG 2 ESTAR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding as at
31 December

Number of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares held’ 2017° Note(s)
20174
128318 #
BE&E HE BEng FERHBEE BMORESL M
(%)
Keen Luck Group Limited (“Keen Luck”) Beneficial owner 1,020,000,000 (L) 43.76
BntEERAR (&) ERHEAA
Champ Origin Limited (“Charm Origin”) Interest of a controlled corporation 1,020,000,000 (L) 43.76 2
BRERAR (BRI REHEE S
Ms. Zhou Xiaoying Interest of spouse 1,020,000,000 (L) 43.76 4
BANEL L [ g
Mr. Jiang Yixuan Interest of a controlled corporation 1,020,000,000 (L) 4376 2 &3
BREF L E REHEEE S
China Huarong International Holdings Limited Person having a security interest in 1,020,000,000 (L) 43.76 7
shares
TEERBBERERAR RROEFERESOAL
Five Seasons XIV Limited (“Five Seasons XIV") Beneficial owner 203,800,000 (L) 874 586
Five Seasons XIV Limited ([ Five Seasons XIV |) EnlBA
Five Seasons XVII Limited (“Five Seasons XVII”) Interest of a controlled corporation 203,800,000 (L) 8.74 5&6
Five Seasons XVII Limited ([ Five Seasons XVIIJ) S &IAE #E %
Fullshare Holdings Limited (“Fullshare”) Interest of a controlled corporation 203,800,000 (L) 874 5&6
YRERBERAT(TER]) REHEE R
Mr. Ji Changqun Interest of a controlled corporation 203,800,000 (L) 874 5&6
FEHLE REHEEE S
Magnolia Wealth International Limited (“Magnolia”)  Interest of a controlled corporation 203,800,000 (L) 8.74 6

Magnolia Wealth International Limited ([ Magnolia |) 5% 1% 8 3% & # %
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Notes:

Save

The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined
under Part XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

These Shares are held by Keen Luck, which is 100% owned
by Champ Origin.

Champ Origin is owned as to 51% by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang
and 49% by Mr. Jiang Yixuan.

Ms. Zhou Xiaoying is the spouse of Mr. Jiang Jiangiang.

Five Seasons XVII, Fullshare, Mr. Ji Changgun and Magnolia
are deemed to be interested in the 203,800,000 Shares,
as Mr. Ji Changqun holds the entire equity interest in
Magnolia, which in turn holds 46.58% equity interest in
Fullshare.

Fullshare holds entire issued share capital of Five Seasons
XVII Limited, and Five Seasons XVII Limited holds entire
issued share capital of Five Seasons XlIV, the beneficial
owner of the Company.

1,020,000,000 Shares are legally and beneficially owned by
Keen Luck. Keen Luck is 100% owned by Champ Origin.
Champ Origin is owned by 51% by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang
and 49% by Mr. Jiang Yixuan. On 26 January, 2017,
Keen Luck executed the relevant documentation to create
a charge (“Share Charge”) over 1,020,000,000 Shares in
favour of China Huarong International Holdings Limited as
chargee to provide loan to Keen Luck. China Huarong
International Holdings Limited (“China Huarong”) was
owned by Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd as to 88.10%.
Accordingly, China Huarong is deemed to be interested in
1,020,000,000 Shares.

Pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the shareholders of
the Company are required to file disclosure of interests
forms (the “DI Forms”) when certain criteria are fulfilled and
the full details of the requirements are available on the
Stock Exchange’s official website. When a shareholder’s
shareholdings in the Company changes, it is not necessary
to notify the Company and the Stock Exchange unless
certain criteria are fulfilled. Therefore, substantial
shareholders’ latest shareholdings in the Company may be
different to the shareholdings filed with the Company and
the Stock Exchange. The above statements of substantial
shareholders’ interests are prepared based on the
information in the relevant DI Forms received by the
Company as of 30 June 2017. The Company may not
have sufficient information on the breakdown of the
relevant interests and cannot verify the accuracy of
information on the DI Forms.

As at 31 December 2017, the total issued capital of the
Company is 2,330,747,935 Shares.

as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief

executive of the Company are not aware that there is any

party
short

who, as at 31 December 2017, had interests or
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 11 October 2013 (the
“Adoption Date”), for the purpose of providing incentives
or rewards to selected eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the Share Option Scheme will remain in force
for ten years from the Adoption Date.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
the following:

1. any employee (whether full time or part time) of the
Group or any entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which
any member of the Group holds any shareholding
(including any executive director but excluding any
non-executive director of the Group or any Invested
Entity);

2. any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

3. any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

4. any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

5. any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Group or any Invested Entity;

6. any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

7. any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and

8. any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint
venture, business alliances or other business
arrangement to the development and growth of the
Group.

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue on the date of adoption. The maximum number of
Shares issuable upon exercise of the options which may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company for the time being. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective close associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules), are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive Directors (excluding
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the options). In addition, where any grant of share options
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director, or to any of their respective close
associates, would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to
be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in excess of 0.1% of the
Shares in issue and with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, in a 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant, such grant of share options
are subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The
exercise period for the share options granted is
determined by the Board, which period may commence
from the date of acceptance of the offer for the grant of
share options but shall end in any event not later than 10
years from the date of the grant of the option subject to
the provisions for early termination under the Share Option
Scheme.

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board, but
shall not be less than the highest of:

i the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of the offer of the grant, which must be a business
day;

ii. the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of the offer of grant; and

iii. the nominal value of the Shares.

As at the year ended 31 December 2017, no share option
has been granted by the Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had no related party
transactions during the year.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE COMPANY'’S
SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections “Share
Options Scheme” and “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interest and Short Position in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, at no time during the year was
the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its ultimate holding
company, or any subsidiaries of its ultimate holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of
the Company and their respective close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) had any interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or has any other conflict of interest
with the Group during the year and up to the date of this
report.

Controlling Shareholders have given non-competition
undertaking in favour of the Company. Please refer to
page 47 of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association and
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance), every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made a charitable donation
amounting to nil (2016: RMB1 million).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees and senior
management of the Group is set up by the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the
Company on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, having regard
to market competitiveness, individual performance and
achievement.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of
the scheme is set out in “Share Option Scheme” section
of this report and note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMPLOYEES

A review of the number of employees and the related staff
costs is provided in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on page 23 of this report. The Group ensures
that the pay levels of its employees are competitive and in
line with the market trend and its employees are
rewarded on a performance related basis within the
general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus
system.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section
of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

EEE®RSE

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Other than disclosed in section headed “Capital structure,
liquidity and financial resources” above, there is no major
event after the reporting period.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from Directors, save as otherwise set out in
this announcement, there is no change in the information
of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the Company’s last
published interim report. The change of Director’s
information as required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out below:

1. The director’s fee of Mr. Xu Jiaming was increased
to HK$240,000 per annum with effect from
1 January, 2018.

2. The director’s fee of Mr. Eddie Hurip was increased
to HK$240,000 per annum with effect from
1 January, 2018.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with the requirements as set out in the Listing
Rules for the purposes of reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Luk Chi Shing,
Mr. Eddie Hurip (appointed as member of the Committee
on 31 May 2017) and Mr. Xu Jiaming. The Audit
Committee has reviewed and discussed with the
management and the external auditor financial reporting
matters including the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2017. The annual results have been audited
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the independent auditors of
the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have
been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”). A resolution to re-appoint the retiring
independent auditor, Deloitte, will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

There has been no change in auditor of the Company for
the preceding three years.

By order of the Board
China Saite Group Company Limited

Jiang Jiangiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B % AR

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA SAITE GROUP
COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Saite Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 73 to 151, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matter

AREZRER

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AT R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEETERRNETEENREXZER

Recognition of revenue and profits from construction contracts and amounts due from (to) customers for

contract work

EREEE R Kz REFARER (BN EFEFTEALE

We identified recognition of revenue and gross profit
from construction contracts and amounts due from/to
customers for contract work as a key audit matter as
they are significant to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and significant management’s
estimations and judgments are involved in the
determination of the total outcome of construction
contracts and the percentage of completion.
EEERREARNKERENRER BHNEEE
FITERFAERLSARERFR REAREARGSH
BHEEEME VBEXN BEEREREBETREESGR
WERBEFERTTIAD R D RE KRG &G -

The Group recognised revenue of RMB1,412 million
and gross profit of RMB360 million from construction
contracts for the year ended 31 December 2017 as
shown in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and had amounts
due from contract customers of RMB4 million and
amounts due to contract customers of RMB4 million
as at 31 December 2017 as disclosed in note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BN E M B HRERMT0ME RS EEERERE
Bk HEMEEKGRAEREE2017F12H318 Ik
FENREEARKRERENANRBARE
1,412,000,0007T & A K #360,000,0007T * 1720174
12AMAFMERZEREREPRERENERER
FIBH BB A R ¥4,000,0007T & A K #4,000,0007T °

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognises the amount of
attributable profit or foreseeable losses from
construction contracts based on the latest available
budgets of those construction contracts with reference
to the overall performance of each construction
contract which requires management’s best estimates
and judgements. Because of the nature of the
construction industry, the management regularly
reviews the progress of the contracts and the
estimated construction revenue and construction
costs.

MINGRE M RAM TaprEE - EEBREREES
R HEAASEEL2ESEZESRANERBRRER
REZEREARNEBERNKAIRERERESE  Z
BIRAEREETREM RAE - AREETED
MEER BEEREHPmAE R TEEREN LM
W RBEKA -

Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue and
gross profit from construction contracts and amounts
due from/to customers for contract work included:
EEPRBERERE RS REF R EYR AT
FAERIEREBENREF B

o Assessing the accuracy of the forecasted revenue
by agreeing to the contract sum as set out in the
construction contracts on a sample basis;

. MRS ERYE A A RBEEEES
FAE & R :

o Understanding the basis of estimation of the
budgets by discussing with the project managers
who are responsible for the budgeting of projects,
and evaluating the reasonableness of their
estimated profit margins by taking into account
the profit margins of similar projects on a sample
basis;

. R T BAETEENELE AR ASHEBEHEH
HEKENwIBREE WA RECIEE A&
MEiE  FEEGFENENS BN

° Evaluating the accuracy of percentage of
completion by confirming the percentage with the
respective projects’ surveyors of the customers,
and by conducting site visits and discussing with
the operational management to observe the on-
site progress status of the projects on a sample
basis;

. HMETET LA LA ERE  FRXNAREFH
FEEHBEEBRA DL RETEME - Wi
WEEBIE NEREHBRSER

o Checking the accuracy of the amounts due from/
to customers for contract works by agreeing the
actual cost incurred and progress billing
acknowledged by the customers for the vyear
ended 31 December 2017 to the invoices/
payment certificates on a sample basis; and

. MEZERK EAES AR TRRENER
- FRAABEERE BEFTALHENEZE
201751231 B I F E R BB KA R T P T
RZEEFIE: R

o Evaluating the reasonableness of revenue and
gross profit recognised to date by using the
percentage of completion confirmed by the
projects surveyor to recalculate the amounts.

. FAEEERER T IADLEHNAESRE
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Key audit matter

AREZRER

Recoverability of trade receivables
JEWE 5 5IEZ AT B 12 2

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as
a key audit matter as it is significant to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and there
is management’s estimation involved in determining
the amount of allowance for doubtful debts based on
the estimation of the recoverable amount of trade
receivables.
EZEERERESFIEMNAKROEERRSARERZ
T REREHGEMBREAEEBMEEEAR A
EEERBEEYKE SHRIENITRESENEFTETE
RERBER P KRG -

As disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2017, trade
receivables of the Group which were past due but not
impaired amounted to RMB1,011 million while the total
trade receivables of the Group amounted to
RMB1,705 million (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of RMB15 million) represented 56% of the Group’s
total assets. Impairment loss of RMB15 million was
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2017. The estimated impairment losses
are determined by the management of the Group
based on the credit reviews performed, taking into
account repayment history of the counterparties and
the current market conditions.

M AN20174E12 3318 2 47 & B 75 ¥ 3% fff sF21 77 #2 B8
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEETERRNETEENREXZER

Our procedures in relation to recoverability of trade
receivables included:

EESLERBREZRANKREREENRZF B

° Evaluating the accuracy of the ageing report of the
trade receivables, by checking to the construction
contracts for the terms of payment, including the
milestone events stipulated in the contracts or the
actual progress of the work performed, on a
sample basis;

J BT R E S RIARR RS ERE - 5
REERESRNNRIGR  BEARTANE
ERBRIERBELIER

o Making enquiry with management on their
assessment of recoverability of past due trade
receivables, including understanding the trade
debtors’ credit quality and their past payment
history; and

. AMEREEHNERBEKE S RENAKEREE
Wl BRETHRERESERNEEERZRRE
BEMRES &

° Evaluating management’s assessment on the
recoverability of amounts due from individual
debtors with significant balances past due but not
impaired by examining the subsequent settlement
from these individual debtors on a sample basis,
or for those individual debtors without any
subsequent settlement, analysing the Group’s
business relationship with them and their credit
profile.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Chiu Mei Hing.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income

ek EtEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

NOTES
B &

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses, net
Selling and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Share of profit of a joint venture

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

Earnings per share
Basic (RMB cents)

Y &
85 & P AR

E 7

H b W A

Ho A U 5 2 &5 18 R HR
HENMZHMAX
TR X

1 75 P A

DHELEEERF

B 58 A & A
FIT 15 B 7 X

ARAEEANRIEFEA
AN EEERABE

FRA
ERANRED)

12

13

15

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARE T
1,411,745 1,650,760
(1,051,837) (1,222,468)
359,908 428,292
9,985 9,737
(7,399) (6,608)
(4,093) (2,107)
(37,233) (31,585)
(7,356) (6,554)
409 502
314,221 391,677
(87,021) (103,408)
227,200 288,269
9.77 14,13
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 December 2017 72017612H31H

NOTES
B &

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Interest in a joint venture
Available-for-sale investments

Current assets

Amounts due from customers for
contract work

Prepaid lease payments

Trade receivables

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Amounts due to customers for
contract work

Trade payables

Deposits received, other payables
and accruals

Amount due to a director

Corporate bonds — due within
one year

Provisions

Short-term borrowings

Tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

ERHEE
ME - KEREZE
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
A%ﬁ%%%é
—H,\Hj%Txé

mMENEE
EWEPF&RIENA

ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
fE W & 5 5k
H ) fE IR
TE A R IE
RITHEBRRIRS

IE ek

nBER
ENEFA&RIERA

FE 8 5 5 IR

BIRIES - EAbREN AR
[EitE M

BN —REEREA
AAfESF— R —FA2H

BB

SIS EN
MIBRE

REBEEFHE
HEERRDEE

16
17
18
19

20
17
21

22
23

20
24

25
26

27
28
29

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARET T
220,127 186,746
57,032 38,199
153,911 153,502
53,928 -
484,998 378,447
4,466 8,138
1,312 902
1,705,437 1,412,262
104,156 113,327
757,321 779,260
2,572,692 2,313,889
4,424 1,473
68,753 73,152
97,252 36,502

- 5,210

19,199 —
1,200 6,200
46,150 80,631
32,588 61,403
269,566 264,571
2,303,126 2,049,318
2,788,124 2,427,765
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MR R &

At 31 December 2017 2017412 H31H

2017 2016
20175 20164
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
k=2 ARETR ARETT
Non-current liabilities FRENEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBA G 30 92,116 92,116
Corporate bonds — due after NafEH— N —F& 5 E 27
one year 87,435 -
179,551 92,116
2,608,573 2,335,649
Capital and reserves BERMHE
Share capital [N 31 187,410 179,527
Share premium and reserves f& 15 5 B K 2,421,163 2,166,122
2,608,573 2,335,649
The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 151 FIBEEBIGIEMGEEMBRREBAESTER
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of 201843 H29B L RT3 - Wil T ESNK
directors on 29 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf xEE:
by:
Jiang Jianqgiang Shao Xiaoqiang
HER BR/N5E
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & £20174128318 I F &

Share Share Capital Statutory Retained
capital premium reserve reserves profits Total
BE B 5} itk B AAGE BERE REERF @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥FT AR®TRT AR®TT AR®TRT AR%T:R
(Note a) (Note b)
(Pt #¥a) (Pt #Eb)
At 1 January 2016 20161818 161,268 429,597 66,587 141,020 1,186,672 1,985,044
Profit and total comprehensive FRARFRZEBALE
income for the year = — — - 288,269 288,269
Transfer to statutory reserves BAATHE = = = 29,664 (29,664) -
Final dividend paid for the year EEIREE2015F12A31H IEFE
ended 31 December 2015 (note 14) ZAREBRE (M E14) = (32,608) = = = (32,608)
Issue of new shares (note 31) BATH MR (M 5E31) 18,259 76,685 - - — 94,944
At 31 December 2016 12016128310 179,527 473,674 66,587 170,684 1,445,177 2,335,649
Profit and total comprehensive income FRNBAREERABE
for the year - - - - 227,200 227,200
Issue of new shares (note 31) BATH AR (B &E31) 7,883 37,841 - - - 45,724
At 31 December 2017 M2017§12A31H 187,410 511,515 66,587 170,684 1,672,377 2,608,573
Notes: Bt &E

(@) Capital reserve represents

(i) waiver of amount due to former immediate holding
company;

(i) the difference between the nominal value of shares
of the Company issued as consideration in
exchange for the aggregate of the share capital of
the subsidiary of the Company arising upon the
corporate reorganisation (the “Corporate
Reorganisation”) to rationalise the Group’s structure
prior to listing of the Company’s shares on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”); and

(iii) capital contribution from shareholders under the
Corporate Reorganisation.

@ EAHMEE

(i)

(i

(i)

MR RN ERER AR ZHIA

ARABHETEARENRNEEEZRAR

AROREE

hh AN
C=]

R BRRE T

1) B AT A R A E (L A 5 1) 2845 i
TR ER(RAREENEEZARA
MBARNKRANERERNEZE &

BRERBBEATDBAELNTE -

bt X

i X

The statutory reserves represent the amount transferred
from net profit for the year of a subsidiary established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (based on the
PRC statutory financial statements of that PRC subsidiary)

in accordance with the relevant PRC

laws until

the

statutory reserves reach 50% of the registered capital of
that subsidiary. The statutory reserves cannot be reduced
except either in setting off the accumulated losses or

increasing capital.

China Saite Group Company Limited FEFEFEE AR QA

AERBEERTPEARLME (] REME
7 B0 122 B SZ B BT B X A RO F AR R (B %
B B B A R B R BDAE B A 3R AR ) BB BR0R
BEERSAERBEBRZMBARGZME RN
50% 43 b © 7% %A FE 7 4 1N R AR - MEFR A 3H
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Bank interest income
Loan interest income
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Reversal of provisions for
financial guarantees
Impairment loss recognised on
trade receivables
Finance costs
Exchange differences on short-

term borrowings and corporate

bonds

Share of result of a joint venture

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Decrease in amounts due from
customers for contract work
Increase in trade receivables
Decrease in other receivables,
deposits and prepayments
Increase in amounts due to
customers for contract work
Decrease in trade payables
Increase in deposits received,
other payables and accruals

CASH GENERATED FROM
(USED IN) OPERATIONS
PRC income tax paid

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Prepaid lease payments paid

Advance to a director

Acquisition of available-for-sale
investments

Interest received

Loan repaid from a third party

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

I
BB A& A

BLA T I8 B 16 5 -
217 7| BIRA

(e IENON

Wi BE LR A E

M ERERERD

Sh 8 W 5 TR A FE SR
BB & 1B

B 75 B AR

MHERWER =B8R
NCIEEEZ

DEEZELEREA

W E P &R TEHRE
>

FE Y & 5 3R IE N

Hib W FIE - BE R
8 5SROI

ENEPF &R TERA
1800

& 8 5 R IE R 4

B RS - E M KA
N et & Mg N

EEEBELE (AW
B&
ENPERAEH

EETHELE (FTA MR
®iFH

R&ETH
BEWE BFELERE

ENENBEERA
—REEMEERR
WA HHERE

SRS
F=ZTEENERK

RETEH(MA) EEHR
®iFH

mEEHERER

2017 2016
20174E 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARE T
314,221 391,677
(3,163) (3,013)
- (48)
2,798 3,022
(5,000) (5,996)
14,978 —
7,356 6,554
(6,927) 5,229
(409) (502)
323,854 396,923
18,659 10,999
(308,153) (581,456)
24,091 74,318
2,951 464
(4,399) (1,842)
60,750 2,083
117,753 (98,511)
(115,836) (93,200)
1,917 (191,711)
(49,909) (23)
(20,500) —
(14,920) —
(8,204) —
3,163 4,290
- 22,202
(90,370) 26,469
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds
New short-term borrowings raised
Repayment of short term borrowings
Finance costs paid

(Repayment to) advance from a director
Proceeds from issue of shares
Dividends paid

NET CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR
represented by bank balances
and cash

REEE
TR AME S PIIS RIR
EEFEHER
BEBHER

B B 75 AR AR
(BEEEFRB)EFER
BTN FTISFOR
ENEE

METHELNBREFR

BeRREFEDRLDFH
ENRERREEEY

FERBERBSEEY
ARITAE R RIRE IR

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARET T
107,960 —
4,500 -
(33,752) —
(6,984) (4,450)
(5,210) 5,210

- 94,944

- (32,608)
66,514 63,096
(21,939) (102,146)
779,260 881,406
757,321 779,260

China Saite Group Company Limited FE&EFEEHRE QG



1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS AR B A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z£20174 128318 It F &

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares (the “Shares”) are listed on
the Stock Exchange. Its immediate holding
company and ultimate holding company are Keen
Luck Group Limited and Champ Origin Limited,
respectively, both are limited companies
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding
company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
are investment holding and construction of steel
structure and prefabricated construction projects.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accounts (the “HKICPA”) for the first
time in the current year.
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax
HKAS 12 Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to As part of the Annual
HKFRS 12 Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 — 2016 Cycle

Except as described as below, the application of
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material effect on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

—REH

ARBERSERSEMR LA —RERRE
RaR - mERD(ERO)EREHAE
e HERNRKERQR D AEREE
BERAFEERBERAR RN EBRE L
HEEMAZNERAF -

RARRBREERAR  HNBRANEE
EBRBREEREMEB R 2 RETARB M
BEHBENEEBRT -

FAEMBRRIIVARRBNINEEEARE
TAR®BDZ%-

FERFIREBITEBYH
TEEN((EBTHRHREE
]

RAER - REEEREHANLThESE
MAE((EBEHAAR]) Bi62 EEHE
B ST A -

[ == Hn SVAN

FR g ER % BB 5t &

F7H (EFTA)
g ER R B 35 & 18 R R

FA2SE (BRI A) KERBEE

BEMBHRELER (ERE MRS LR

F125F (BT R) 20144 £20164F A Hi
ZEENEZ D

BTXAEI  RAFERBELMBEER
SEANETA  HAKEAFERBEFE
M RBEMRN R IZEGE M BERE
Pz WBELBEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosures
Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments
require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of the consolidated financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financial
activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. In addition, the amendments also require
disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash
flow from those financial assets were or future cash
flow will be included in cash flows from financing
activities.

Specially, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed() changes from financing cash flows;
(i) changes arising from obtaining or loss control of
subsidiaries or other business; (i) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in
fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of these items is provided in note 36.
Consistent with the transition provisions of the
amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the addition disclosure in note 36, the
application of these amendments has had no
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

China Saite Group Company Limited FEFEFEE AR QA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’
HKFRS 16 Leases?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*
HK(IFRIC) — Foreign Currency Transactions and
Int 22 Advance Consideration’
HK(IFRIC) — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Int 23 Treatments?

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to Prepayment Features with

HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation?
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 between an Investor and its
and HKAS 28  Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property!
HKAS 40
Amendments to As part of the Annual
HKAS 28 Improvements to HKFRSs

2014-2016 Cycle'

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates

HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures?
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2021

2. EARA#FHITR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, general hedge accounting

and

impairment accounting requirements for

financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 that are relevant to
the Group:

All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other
financial assets are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.

China Saite Group Company Limited FEFEFEE AR QA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses
are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the
directors of the Company anticipate the following
potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at cost less impairment
as disclosed in note 19: these securities
qualified for designation as FVTOCI under
HKFRS 9 and the Group will measure these
securities at fair value at the end of
subsequent reporting periods with fair value
gains or losses to be recognised as other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve. Upon
initial recognition of HKFRS 9, the carrying
amounts of these securities under HKAS 39
are expected to approximated to their fair
values under HKFRS 9 as at 1 January
2018.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities
will continued to be measured on the same
bases as are currently measured under HKAS
39.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(Continued)

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the expected credit loss
model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of
credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation
to the Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised costs and other items that subject to the
impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9
by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the
Company, if the expected credit loss model were to
be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount
of impairment loss to be recognised by Group as at
1 January 2018 would be increased as compared to
the accumulated amount recognised under HKAS
39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses
provision on trade and other receivables. Such
further impairment recognised under expected credit
loss model would reduce the opening retained
profits and increase the deferred tax assets at
1 January 2018.

China Saite Group Company Limited FEFEFEE AR QA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods
and services. Specifically, the Standard introduces
a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance
obligation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to
HKFRS 15 in relation to the identification of
performance obligations, principal versus agent
consideration, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The Group anticipates that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures, however, the Group does not
anticipates that the application of HKFRS 15 will
have a material impact on the timing and amounts
of revenue recognised in the respective reporting
periods.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for
the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and
the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified assets is
controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except
for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use while other operating lease payments
are presents as operating cash flows. Under
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where
the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS
16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the
same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were
owned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
RMB5,323,000 as disclosed in note 38. A
preliminary assessment indicated that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements
may result changes in measurement, presentation
and disclosure as indicated above.

Except as described above, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of
other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations issued but not yet effective, will have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-base
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017412A318 It F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair values, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”
and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
“Non-current Assets held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017412A318 It F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statement of joint venture
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group like transaction and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the joint venture other
than profits or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by
the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of a
joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 %

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes a joint venture. On acquisition of
the investment in a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or

loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to

determine whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the joint venture are recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of investment in the joint venture that
are not related to the Group.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017412A318 It F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business and net
of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specified criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities, as described below.

The Group’s accounting policy for the recognition of
revenue from construction services is described in
the accounting policy for construction contracts
below.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on
a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the
accounting policy for leasing below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purpose (other than
construction in progress as described below) are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress including property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction for
production, administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs
include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017412A318 It F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the
terms of the relevant lease.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land held under operating leases, are
recognised as an expense on a straight line basis
over the lease terms of the relevant lease. In the
event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as
a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight line basis.

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire property is accounted as an
operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any Ilump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element at initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESFHEK#E)
POLICIES (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant MAHEA R IERE A SE DI - B A & E 5 BR
payments can be made reliably, interest in E’ﬁﬂ%iﬂﬂ%ﬁé NRE M BARR KR AT A
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating (Bt ERE] BREARRERERE
lease is presented as “prepaid land lease %ﬁﬁ o 1|Jﬁﬁf%_f§AIET ENTEE L RIET P
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial DZEASESR  BERENE-—RKRSHER
position and is amortised over the lease terms on a mﬁﬁ%ﬁ IETZ%"EiE\iﬂ’E

straight line basis. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under finance
lease.

At the end of reporting period, the Group reviews REHREHR AEEEHEEHREERA
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to B UEEZSEESTHBAMREE]E
determine whether there is any indication that those R MEREAREITR - Al EEN AT
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any O¢% UWETREBEMNEE@A) -

such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable Thﬂ/ﬂl%lﬂéﬁ FTEE2WEISRE - AJARE
amount of an asset individually, the Group gt ZEEMBREEES MZ—JW@
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash- SEoMABANEER —B 2B EE
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a u—.%é? AR EFANESEESB - 3K
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be SRERHANEGER —HOBREE 2 &/AE
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to %‘J WEELEEN-

individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less AWEIREDAFERLEXNAREREERE
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing BaeE o Rl EERAEER  HitARRS
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are MENRAGATREFBARERE R
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax ML SRR EENE AT E MZEE
discount rate that reflects current market 5 R B B OR 8 59 3% 3 b 3 B 5T R 2K 3R
assessments of the time value of money and the EmE) °

risks specific to the asset for which the estimates

of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated Wt EEMAWE B ENERTAE 8
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying eHEEREMERSEN KL CRE - BHES
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable BElRRNERER -

amount. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, W EBEREEER  AIZEFEENR
the carrying amount of the tangible asset is HEZGENE LS M RE &8 -
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable LRAEMEAAETNSBAMZEERNBESF
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount Fiﬂzﬂ%ﬁ&u«uﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%i%ﬁ%ﬁ@ NERE]
does not exceed the carrying amount that would EBERDERERBERABIA

have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017412A318 It F &

3.

Bt 7% 3R R Y R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are
recognised using the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the value of
work performed to date. Variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments are included
to the extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is shown as amounts
due from customers for contract work. For
contracts where progress billings exceed contract
costs incurred for work performed to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the
surplus is shown as amounts due to customers for
contract work. Amounts received before the related
work is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as a liability, as
advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customer are
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under trade receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 %

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

The Group’s financial assets are classified into the
following specified categories: available-for-sale
(“AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017412A318 It F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated as available-
for-sale or are not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

Equity securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period expect for unquoted equity
investments whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured. Dividends on AFS equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables, and bank balances
and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial assets, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

o breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will

enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised costs, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017412A318 It F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premium or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables, amount due to a director and short-term
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder (i.e. the
beneficiary of the guarantee) for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017412A318 It F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and

(if) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on settlement of
monetary items and on the retranslation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017412A318 It F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and interest in a joint venture, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interest are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Payments to Mandatary Provident Fund Scheme
and state-managed retirement scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employee rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as
an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Liability recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or
permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

For share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted
is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

3.

FTESHEEE)

REEE RN YIZEB REREERERS T
SXNZARMRENCEER - BRIFEZ—FBA
B REERNERSEFHZBAFTARE
§$ CRAMAEHEERNOBER LA

BEZEFARMNMPINIERFE FRR
AR TIRIEEFRE N SR REREE -

HiRHEBRAER c ARRASEE
BEE®RE B HAIR RS 1 e 5K
RESRE 2 REFE - BEREERRS
A FBREHFTEEE ZEMEEHNIE
SR S —BAMBWMELAERIE
A BT A E E R ASER SN o

e B S iR B LR S E b A T EH Z A
PR AE B A IR D R A B AN TH A MR #E T B
REH BN RFEFTE -

RRREAHARREE ZBRENS - AR
HBERE s A TFENKRIERH-

FEREEITER - BERBEEREGER

SEHERERMRE - MERERERR
HR BRI RN fEm B D RTTE - BAER
BEREFREERAZCESEREZREAT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can
be measured reliably.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the
directors of the Company are required to make
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The Group recognises the amount of attributable
profit or foreseeable losses from construction
contracts based on the latest available budgets of
those construction contracts with reference to the
overall performance of each construction contract
which requires management’s best estimates and
judgements. Construction revenue is estimated in
accordance with the terms set out in the relevant
contracts. Construction costs which mainly
comprise installation costs and costs of materials
are estimated by the management on the basis of
quotations from time to time provided by the major
contractors/suppliers/vendors involved and the
experience of the management. Because of the
nature of the construction industry, the
management regularly reviews the progress of the
contracts and the estimated construction revenue
and construction costs. Any change in the
estimates of construction revenue or construction
cost will affect the amount of foreseeable losses, or
attributable profits recognised in the profit or loss
prospectively in each reporting period using the
percentage of completion method.

When there is objective evidence of impairment
loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition, where applicable).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to
changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2017, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
RMB1,705,437,000 (2016: RMB1,412,262,000) (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of RMB14,978,000
(2016: nil)) as disclosed in note 21.

4.

A REEMENEERIER 2

AEEREZEASRNZHAISGEETLZ2E
BEEARNBERERRRARSESES
FIMEEAF AR EESE  ZIBEA
EHEEHEITREM RAE -  ZERZ IR
BHEBEASRAMINERMGEET - BEKAETESR
ELERARMEIKAS  THEEERSH
TRNEZABREMHEREHTREREE
MFELEREEBOEH M o AREET
EMEEFER EEESTCHRTARERE
AR et st 28 R AR AR AN o st SRR
SR EEKANEREHN T EFEBHEN S
REFERATIE D A AR IBRE P ER
MAEREEELAFSE-

WERBEERERTRRESE 68 E
ERGARRBEERE - REEESBEAL
EFmEEZeREENRERF X (ANY]
THIABGHENEERMNE  WER)IMEN
HEFERBEESRETBEHNAELENBER
EEEBR)BEENZB -HWEBRLRKBEESR
EREHALRATENBREEREME
T BITTREE A B AR EEIE o i
2P R 0 20175128310 BIRE 5
HIEHE®EAS AR ®1,705,437,00070
(20164 : A R #1,412,262,0007T) (1 & %
BE 5 A F2#514,978,0007T (20164 « #)) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

5.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the revenue arising on
construction contracts.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating activities are attributable to
the operating segments focusing on the
construction of steel structure and prefabricated
construction projects. These operating segments
have been identified on the basis of internal
management reports that are regularly reviewed by
the executive directors of the Company who are the
chief operating decision makers of the Group (the
“CODM”). The executive directors review revenue
and gross margin analysis by each construction
contract for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

For segment reporting under HKFRS 8 “Operating
Segments”, the revenue and gross margin of each
construction contract with similar economic
characteristics has been aggregated into a single
reportable and operating segment. The accounting
policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. The segment revenue and segment result (i.e.
gross margin) reviewed by the CODM is the same
as the Group’s revenue and gross profit.

Amounts of segment assets and liabilities of the
Group have not been reviewed by the CODM.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; 2017412 A318 It F /&

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

Entity-wide information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by major types
of construction contracts is as follows:

o EE R (&)

AEBREESRE2HRIE D0 KRS

Construction of B
— Steel structure projects — MEHEIEE
— Prefabricated construction — BRBHRESEIER

projects

(N
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR T
848,253 1,090,263
563,492 560,497
1,411,745 1,650,760

Geographical information

No geographical segment information is presented
as all the Group’s revenue is derived from
operations in the PRC and over 99% of the Group’s
non-current assets are located in the PRC.

i & & R

HRAEENKE2EHRETENEE M
£ B 7899% 1) IF 7 B B B Ih 2 BP0
A EZ D E D EEF

Information about major customers EREXEEFHNEHR
Revenues from customers of the corresponding REBEE - FTEBAONEG A S BB K
years contributing over 10% of the total revenue of BI0%ME LT ¢
the Group are as follows:
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARBTT
Customer A2 = PEA 296,828 *
Customer B! EFB * 316,156
1 Revenue from construction of steel structure 1 REEZWMAEBER O RE -
projects.
2 Revenue from construction of prefabricated 2 REEZTERBHREBR WSS -
construction projects.
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over * MR R I G AR R B AU 810% ©

10% of the total revenue of the Group for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & £20174128318 It F &

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HMWKA
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR F T
Sales of scrapped materials BERLHE 4,668 4,532
Interest income on bank deposits R 1717 2 A B U A 3,163 3,013
Rental income HE WA 2,154 2,144
Loan interest income B A B A - 48
9,985 9,737

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 8. HMKWBREEFEE

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETTT

Impairment loss recognised on MEWE 5 RIEERE
trade receivables (note 21) BB R 18 (K EE21) 14,978 —
Exchange (gains) losses, net & (W as) BEFE (7,579) 6,608
7,399 6,608

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BIBAA

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETFIT
Interests on short-term borrowings %2 81 & U F & 5,782 6,554
Interests on corporate bonds NafESHF A 1,574 —

7,356 6,554
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10. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
directors, which include the Chief Executive, were

as follows:

For the year ended
31 December 2017:

Executive directors:
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang
Mr. Xu Fanghua

Sub-total

Independent non-executive
directors:

Mr. Xu Jiaming

Mr. Chen Tiegang (note iii)

Mr. Luk Chi Shing (note i)

Mr. Eddie Hurip (note ii)

Sub-total

Total

& F20175F12A318
ILEE:

HITES:
BEakE
BB/ 3 S

et
BYFRITES
BREEE

PR 4 8 4 AE (B sl )
BE AR 28 A (BT RED)
8RR 5% A& (Ff i)
et

Bt

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; 2017412 A318 It F /&

10. EE R EE1TH A B # N

ENSENTREZ(BRIETRARH

FET

Salaries and
other
Fees benefits

HER
Gk H iy 18 H

RMB’000
ARETR

RMB’000
ARE T

Retirement
benefit
scheme

contributions

BHRER
at Bl gt
RMB’000
ARETR

- 1,532 14 1,546
- 872 14 886
- 208 - 208
- 2,612 28 2,640
104 - - 104
43 - - 43
208 - - 208
61 - - 61
416 - - 416
3,056
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 10 EERFTETHRAEFHFHN2)

EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fees other benefits  contributions Total
ek RKAE A
ik H it 18 7 BE LT wEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT AREFTRT ARETx
For the year ended # F20165F12A31H
31 December 2016: LEE:
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang BERREE = 1,405 12 1,417
Mr. Shao Xiaogjiang AR /)38 5 A - 805 12 817
Mr. Xu Fanghua R LA (3D = 205 = 205
Sub-total /NE = 2,415 24 2,439
Independent non-executive BUENITES:

directors:

Mr. Xu Jiaming BRRALAE 103 = = 103
Mr. Chen Tiegang (note iii) R 51 80 5E A& (FF &iii ) 103 — — 103
Mr. Ma Chun Fung Horace 55 iR & 5% A (BT aEiv)

(note iv) 195 — — 195
Sub-total % 401 = = 401
Total @it 2,840
Notes: B &

0] Mr. Luk Chi Shing was appointed as an independent (i) B BB S ER2017F1 ASHEZ T A B
non-executive director on 3 January 2017. FEMITES -

(ii) Mr. Eddie Hurip was appointed as an independent (ii) FRREER2017F5A31HEZEAE L
non-executive director on 31 May 2017. FHITES -

(i)~ Mr. Chen Tiegang has resigned as an independent (i) PR L A B 201745 A 268 B E 1B 3E
non-executive director effective from 26 May 2017. HITES

(v)  Mr. Ma Chun Fung Horace has resigned as an (v FSIRIE LA B R2016512 130 B £ L
independent non-executive director effective from FEMITES -

13 December 2016.

EXFRBTESNHFIRBEFEEERR
ARAEREEHEEENRE A -

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

EXFRRBYIFMITEETNFT ML B EIER
ARREENRG M A e

The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; 2017412 A318 It F /&

10. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF

11.

EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Mr. Shao Xiaogiang is also the Chief Executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the
Chief Executive.

None of the directors waived any emoluments for
both years. No emolument was paid by the Group
to any of the directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group
during the year include two directors (2016: two
directors), details of whose emoluments are set out
in note 10 above. Details of the emoluments for the
year of the remaining three (2016: three) highest
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company were as follows:

10. EERFETHAEHMN =

BNREETFSARAREETRAE - £X
BN REEAETETRASRMER
BHEMS -

RWEFE  MEEERNEEAFH - NE
B EAEAEE N EAME A ERRE
MAREBE IR MAREE N RBNIER
BERW(E -

"M E2BSHEE

FR AEBRIARSHEECTEMNBES
(2016%F : MBESR)  FENFIFBIHRN
EXHFE10 FRHBT =5 (2016%F : =F)
FARNREBNIEETRAENTSHE
BRHMEBERHIOT

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

¥ K H AR A
B ARAE A FH 8 5K

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
1,676 1,177

17 31

1,693 1,208
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES "M. BB HFEE#®)

(Continued)
The number of the highest paid employees who are FWEATEENEARARRAESTN RS HE
not the directors of the Company whose BRAZBNT :
emoluments fell within the following bands is as
follows:
Number of individuals
A
2017 2016
20175 20164
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,000/% 7T 3 3
No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the RREFE - NEE &R A SR T E
remaining highest paid individuals in the Group as HEao AT EME - AEARSI K E
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or BB P A0 A 7N £ (B By Y 4% ) ok B Bk 4R 1E o
as compensation for loss of office for both years.
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FREHAX
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
Current tax: BV ER % I
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RS 87,021 103,408
Provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax was FREMEREHBEEDIRIBERNRRHH
made based on the estimated taxable profits WMEBARBERAMERMEHRERRERNE
calculated in accordance with the relevant income BT FER TR B R EL -
tax laws and regulations applicable to the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries.
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income BE(RFEAREMBCEMESR ZNL%E
Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulations R8sl REEEMSBEERGH - AA

of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Company’s PRC AP BB A A AR B25% °
subsidiaries is 25%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; 2017412 A318 It F /&

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12. FREH B X #)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been RARASEER MRS EIWEERSEEEM
made as the Group had no assessable profits JERFL A A - B W R FHIR BB F S B
arising in Hong Kong for both years. 1 e

The income tax expense for the year can be FANMEHRALTRGAEEEMEAE
reconciled to the profit before tax per the WaERASBRBRATRBF RN T

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

2017 2016
20175 20164F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR T

Profit before tax & %4 B & F) 314,221 391,677

Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income & /1 B {b 3 F7 15 %1 B =R

Tax rate of 25% (2016: 25%) 25%=F H # T 1A
(20164 : 25%) 78,555 97,919
Tax effect of expenses not AAHHREZ O RETE
deductible for tax purpose 2,495 488
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised & 7k i 2 %% 78 &5 18 £Y
M w & 4,571 4,398
Tax effect of different tax rate of REMBEEREER
subsidiaries operating in {ap=E NIRRT o
other jurisdiction Bz E 2,289 2,265
Tax effect of income not taxable for 78 =% Fi W A B 75 75 52 22
tax purpose (1,352) (1,976)
Tax effect of share of result of DiE—EEELEZ
a joint venture Bz E 102 126
Others HAth 361 188
Income tax expense for the year FRBEHHAXZ 87,021 103,408
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note BRBELERIE 2 FI5E A M FE30 -
30.
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13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

13. FRER

Profit for the year has been arrived

at after charging (crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration-audit services

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Less: amounts capitalised in contract

work in progress

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments

Less: amounts capitalised in contract

work in progress

Staff costs (including directors’

emoluments)
Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

Less: amounts capitalised in contract

work in progress

Bk (GEA) AT R IER =
B R AR

BRI E — HBERB
WE - BEREETE

W RERZERIRETER
RERH IR

T8 5 78 & 7R R

B REZERTEFRHER
BB R HIA

BETIRA(BRESHFM)

¥ K H AR A
B ARAE A58 3K

W RN ERA RIS B
BB RE

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
3,828 2,853
16,528 16,980
(13,730) (13,958)
2,798 3,022
1,257 915
(1,257) (915)
50,554 60,716
5,828 5,697
56,382 66,413
(42,852) (55,045)
13,530 11,368
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; 2017412 A318 It F /&

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continuead) 13. FREBF )

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T

Operating lease rentals in respect of: A NEZEHEMHAS

Premises LES 4,727 5,519
Less: amounts capitalised in WREREERIERER
contracts work in progress BEARB IR (3,114) (3,908)
1,613 1,611

Reversal of provisions for financial — BA 7 ¥ /7 & & # @

guarantees (included in GrAfTTBAX)
administrative expenses) (5,000) (5,996)
Research cost recognised as R AR AR
an expense - 600
Contract work in progress ERAAIHEZERIE
recognised as expense 1,041,766 1,210,596
14. DIVIDENDS 14. & 2

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR T

Dividend recognised as distribution MR AFND IR 2K S :
during the year:

Final dividend paid in respect of the B {#Z2016512H31H
year ended 31 December 2016 of IEFFERHKRE AT

nil (2016: final dividend paid in (20164 : Bt B £2015%F

respect of the year ended 12A31H L FE R E

31 December 2015 of RMB1.6 BRARE1I6H (HER

cents (equivalent to HK$1.91 1.917%84l))

cents) per share - 32,608
The directors do not recommend any payment of EFEZNTRNEMKRBARE  TEZRA
final dividend and propose that the profit for the FRAEFH -

year be retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the following data:

15. R ER
FBIRERBFIIZATEIEE -

2H

Earnings
Earnings for the purpose of basic

and diluted earnings per share 2 B A
Profit for the year FRNAF

Number of Shares 408 4=

Weighted average number of RAETRERRBT 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of & i@AR N4 F1H&

basic earning per share

A EERERAREERN

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBET T
227,200 288,269
’000 '000

Fhx T &
2,326,118 2,040,227

No diluted earnings per share for both 2017 and
2016 were presented as there were no potential
ordinary share in issue for 2017 and 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 16.% - MERRE
EQUIPMENT
Buildings and Plant and Motor Office Leasehold  Construction
structures machinery vehicles equipment  improvement in progress Total
BEREEY BERES RE  BOAERE HEVERE ERIE B3t

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTE  AREBTR ARETRT AR%TT ARETR ARETR AR%TR

COST %3

At 1 January 2016 #201651 718 120,119 122,048 5,30 1498 32 - 249,379
Adtions FE - 15 - 8 - - 2
At 31 December 2016 #2016512A31R 120,119 122,063 5,30 1,506 32 - 249,402
Adtions E 403 183 78 262 - 48,983 49,909
At 31 December 2017 12017412318 120,522 122,046 5470 1,768 a2 48,983 209,311
DEPRECIATION b4

At 1 January 2016 7201651718 20,542 18,864 4,881 1,067 32 - 45,676
Provided for the year RS 6,396 10,240 195 149 - - 16,980
At 31 December 2016 720165 12A31R 26,938 29,104 5076 1216 2 - 62,656
Provided for the year FREE 6,396 10,006 15 1 = = 16,528
At 31 December 2017 1#2017412A318 33,34 39,110 5,001 1,327 a2 - 79,184
CARRYING VALUES fREE

At 31 December 2017 120174128318 87,188 83,136 319 441 - 48,983 220,127
At 31 December 2016 #2016512A31R 93,181 92,959 316 290 - - 186,746
The above items of property, plant and equipment FtmE BERREEE DL RESEH
are depreciated on a straight line basis over their HErRREEREN G I ERFHANER
estimated useful lives and after taking into account ER T FERFE

of their estimated residual value, at the following
rates per annum:

Buildings and structures 5% EFREEY 5%
Plant and machinery 10% R 5 B 1 28 10%
Motor vehicles 10% — 19% B 10% — 19%
Office equipment 5% — 19% N ] 5% — 19%
Leasehold improvement Over the remaining HEWMEEE R REYE

lease period of the BTHEHRA-

office premise.

The Group’s buildings are situated on leasehold AEENEFHURPRANEE T E o
land in the PRC.
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Bt 35 B AR B A

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

17.

18.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. AN HEERE
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
The carrying value of land Tt A BR E (B B 3
comprises:
Leasehold land in the PRC FREREE L 58,344 39,101
Analysed for reporting purposes as: A2 ¥RA B DT ¢
Non-current asset EMEBEE 57,032 38,199
Current asset mENE E 1,312 902
58,344 39,101

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 1. R—EEELE R
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT
Costs of unlisted investment EEMEEKRAR 153,000 153,000
Share of profit of a joint venture AHEERERT 911 502
153,911 153,502
Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of REBRBERRNEELEFBOT ¢
the reporting period are as follows:
Country of Principal Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation/ place of ownership invest voting right held Principal
Name of entity registration business held by the Group by the Group activity
MRS TE XEEMRE AEE P
EREE F M B R ik BHERELLH BERELG EEEH
2017 2016 2017 2016
PIGbe I 20165 RPLRbE-Sll 20164
IHERERFIREZEAMRAF the PRC the PRC 51% 51% 51% 51% Inactive
(“Jiangsu Huachen Saite”)
AIHERBERREZEARAR HH A T
(MITHREEERD

China Saite Group Company Limited FEFEFEE AR QA
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e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; 2017412 A318 It F /&

18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

In June 2015, the Group, together with two
independent third parties, established Jiangsu
Huachen Saite, a PRC-incorporated company and
engaged in construction of steel structure and
prefabricated construction projects, which a total
capital injection of RMB153,000,000. Upon the
establishment of Jiangsu Huachen Saite, the Group
held 51% equity interests in Jiangsu Huachen Saite
while the other two parties, namely 1t R &2 &5
EREBAERAR and EEMBIHWEGR A A
(*Yixing Hongrui”) held 40% and 9%, respectively.
The investment is classified as investment in a joint
venture because its relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s investment in the joint venture is set out
below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s
financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

18.

NR—EEEDNE RSB

R2015%68 AEBEERMEZBLE=H
RIYUTHEREFWRFPRHEMALZ A
) mEREMABRBREBEGHRER
B A HEE AR#153,000,0007T ° 8% 3T
HRERERFRB AEBRBELEERER
51%MHE - T EH M 7 BldE R ER
REBERAGLREEMBIREMERRA A
(BB ]) D Bl E40% K% AE - MR
HEEBERSHERS S ZEFENSH — A
BB EREARALELENKEE - &
EEREECENKRENTHERBEHT
TR FXABZHBEERBMERESELE
Eﬁg%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁ%i

Current assets mENE E
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current liabilities mEBE
Non-current liabilities FERBEE

2016
20164

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR T
301,853 301,035
67 51
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REMB®RME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. R—RBEEEL¥ R ®)
(Continued)

2017 2016
20174 20164F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFX AR T

The above amounts of assets include Fit&EEFIEEFIA TS

the following:
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEZEED 301,853 301,035
Profit and total comprehensive BF RE2ERABEE

income 802 668
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB ER S EERN RS M REANER
information to the carrying amount of the interest in ZR—EEECE 2 ERNREE 2 HEK

a joint venture recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T

Equity attributable to owners of the A& XA AREED

joint venture 301,786 300,984
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AN&EE 7 FrBE# =R A D L

interest 51% 51%
Carrying amount of the Group’s rEBR-—BeEREZ

interest in the joint venture M EREE 153,911 153,502
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

19. I B ERE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENT

JEEMIRAE

Unlisted equity securities at cost

g5 BAE

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR T

— 11.17% of entity A — BEBEAMNI1.17% 51,928 —
Unlisted equity securities at cost FEMRAZS @ RN AE
— 10% of entity B — BEBA10% 2,000 =
53,928 —
0] In the current year, the Group acquired (i) RAFE  AEEWRE—FREBEM

11.17% equity interest in an unlisted entity
(“entity A”) incorporated in Hong Kong at the
fair value of consideration of RMB51,928,000
which consists of cash amounting to
HK$7,000,000 (equivalent to RMB6,204,000)
and 88,947,935 new shares at the
completion date share price of HK$0.58 per
share, amounting to HK$51,589,000
(equivalent to RMB45,724,000). It is
measured at cost less impairment at the end
of the reporting period because the range of
the reasonable fair value estimate is so
significant that the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be
measured reliably.

(if) In the current year, the Group invested in 10%
equity interest in an unlisted entity (“entity B”)
incorporated in the PRC at a consideration of
RMB2,000,000. It is measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of the reasonable fair
value estimate is so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion
that its fair value cannot be measured
reliably.

(i

R ZIELETER(ERADZ11.17%
fEtE - RKERAFEASARKES1,928,000
70 Ef B E R & & 587,000,0007 7T
(HERAR ﬁ%6,204,0007f) i ES
0.5878 7T 2 55 Ak B HA B% 15 18 1§ % 17
88,047,9350% #1 K - & ® &
51,589,000 7T(H & WM A R &
45,724,0007T) ° BM%&%HHX - HIRA AN
FRERE HRAEQAFEGTZE
EBA ARQ ﬁﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁz N AL
ﬁE E+E°

NAREE  REBR - RN HEM
MYWMELETERB((EEBDKE
10%M% # - R B A A R #2,000,000
JC o REREHIR - EIRA AR RO E A
E HRAERQ ﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁZ%ﬁi@

?&E%

RN RARREERR/ERNFTEELR
n+i°
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO)
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT
WORK

™I

Contracts in progress at the end of REXRETHAR :
the year:
Contract costs incurred BEELEARKAR

B HE R & R B R B 18

Recognised profits less recognised
losses

Less: progress billings A TIREE R

285 BB DM
WA [/ %= P RIA

et & R%EP KA

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Amounts due from contract
customers

Amounts due to contract customers

20 ER(BEMBEFERITIRE

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
1,579,822 1,648,104
583,476 558,944
2,163,298 2,107,048
(2,163,256) (2,100,383)
42 6,665

4,466 8,138
(4,424) (1,473)

42 6,665

21.

As at 31 December 2017, retention held by
customers for contract work amounting to
RMB399,377,000 (2016: RMB305,954,000), net of
allowance for doubtful debts of RMB14,978,000
(2016: nil) have been included in trade receivables
under current assets.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The trade receivables arising from construction
contracts are billed and receivable in accordance
with terms of the relevant agreements. Payments
are typically made based on either the milestone
events stipulated in the construction contracts or
the actual progress of the work performed. The
credit periods are ranging from 30 to 90 days,
which vary in accordance with the contract terms.

China Saite Group Company Limited FEFEFEE AR QA

21.

MR2017F12A318 BEFMEARIREEA
1R B £ A K #399,377,0007T (20164 = A
R #305,954,0007T) (4L Bk RER BB A R
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FEWE 5 KA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; 2017412 A318 It F /&

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade
receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts,
presented based on the date of progress billing at
the end of the year.

21.

FEWE 5 FE )

UTRRFEREEERARZIINEKRE S
KM RREB) ORE DT -

0 — 30 days 0—-30K

31 — 90 days 31-90K

91 — 180 days 91-180K
181 days — 1 year 181K —14F
Over 1 year 16 E
Retention receivables EWRE S

Less: impairment loss recognised

FEWIREB &
145 (N &Il B8
1F 1% 5 51

Retention receivables
Due within 1 year
Due after 1 year

W BRI EE R

2017 2016
20175 20164F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR T
210,701 192,940
241,872 435,156
164,092 311,345
321,622 154,586
367,773 12,281
1,306,060 1,106,308
414,355 305,954
(14,978) —
399,377 305,954
1,705,437 1,412,262
287,016 251,459
112,361 54,495
399,377 305,954

The retention receivables (net of allowance for
doubtful debts) of RMB323,542,000 (2016:
RMB127,611,000) and RMB75,835,000 (2016:
RMB178,343,000) are aged within one year and over
one year respectively.

The movement of allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of trade receivables were as follows:

FAE—FAR—FULtZRERKRES (0
B REREE) D A A AR #323,542,00070
(20164 : A R #127,611,0007T) & A R #&
75,835,0007T (20164 : A R #178,343,000
JL) °

EHRKESFENREREZSHNT

2017 2016

20175 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETT

At beginning of the year REA - -
Impairment loss during the year & AR E B8 (M 5E8)

(Note 8) 14,978 —

At end of the year RER 14,978 —
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

21.

BB |RMHE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in the impairment loss of trade receivables
as at 31 December 2017 were individually fully
impaired trade receivables mainly due from
customers with an aggregate carrying amount
before allowance of approximately RMB14,978,000
(2016: nil). The balances were long outstanding and
the management of the Group considered the
recoverability of the balance is remote as the
related customers were in financial difficulties or
have prolonged delay in repayment.

Retention receivables are interest-free and
recoverable at the end of the retention period of
individual construction contracts ranging from 1 to
3 years.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. Management of
the Group is of the opinion that the credit quality of
the trade receivables balances that are neither past
due nor impaired at the end of the reporting period
is of good quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB1,010,877,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB613,380,000), which are past due as at the
end of the year for which the Group has provided
an impairment loss of RMB14,978,000 as at
31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired:

.EWE 5 FRIE (&)

120178128318  [EWE S F B R EEE
BIEEER R A E A A K %14,978,0007T
(20164 : E)WIEXQE}EWIEU%%@%
BREWKESZIB LR ARHHREER

REBEE BT 7,% & AR Ay AT UK [ E A J?\
248 B = 5 B A B I R 8 5k = HRAE IR (EE -

BRFBEZ/RE  MRERESRFRE Y
(T FA1Z23F 2 ) RAT T4 -

S %%Eﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ% AEEEFHEER

FREEERYIREEEFPNEERE - K
SEEEERR E/\#&iﬁﬂﬂiﬁfﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
WMENREEZRAEHRNEELTRRT

MH2017F128318 ' AEBEEKREZEZFHRIER
FEBR T 42 %8 & A R #1,010,877,0007T (2016
F . AR %613,380,0007T) K fE UL 2B - 5%
EREREREBH - ﬁﬁZK%@ﬁézowEm
ABEEFHBREEBEEHB ARE
14,978,0007T (20164 : £&) °

& 8B KRB E K B E 5 R IE 89 AR &
T :

0 — 90 days 0-90X

91 — 180 days 91-180K
181 days — 1 year 181 K-14F
Over 1 year 1A E
Retention receivables EWRE S

2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARBTT
292,527 214,505
129,182 190,246
73,070 122,327
347,890 12,281
842,669 539,359
168,208 74,021
1,010,877 613,380

The retention receivables which are past due but
not impaired (net of allowance for doubtful debts) of
RMB140,065,000 (2016: RMB4,550,000) and
RMB28,143,000 (2016: RMB69,471,000) are aged
within one year and over one year respectively.

China Saite Group Company Limited FE&EFEEHRE QG
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; 2017412 A318 It F /&

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The directors of the Company consider that the
trade receivables that are past due but not impaired
are recoverable whereby there has not been a
significant change in credit quality of the trade
debtors and there is no recent history of default.
Based on the past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS

21.

22.

EWE ZREE)

ERNEREFEFINEEERLEZLEAN
BRI EOIPIERTE  FARAREERR
EEHHERBENEKE ZHIAR TRE -
REBEERR  AXRAREERR BEARZ
SRR ELRERE -

Prepayments SEENE
Deposits paid BftiZe
Other receivables H e I 5RTE

HMEKRZRE - ZERAH
X IE

2017 2016

20175 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR Tt

87,261 112,571

985 756

15,910 —

104,156 113,327

Prepayments mainly represent the material costs
prepaid to suppliers at the total amount of
RMB79,500,000 (2016: RMB105,114,000) during the
current year.

Other receivables include the amount of
RMB14,920,000 due from a director which is
unsecured and interest-free with a maximum
outstanding amount of RMB14,920,000 during the
year. The amount is expected to be recoverable
within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

BANK BALANCES

At 31 December 2017, bank balances carry interest
at prevailing market rates ranged from 0.01% to
0.385% (2016: 0.01% to 0.385%) per annum.

23.

ENFEBEZAAFERNEN TFHEFNY
AR - 4258 A A R #79,500,0007T (2016
£ AR #105,114,0007T) °

FRHEMBERZBEREREK —ZEEZE
AR #14,920,0007C ' Z X B AEEE LR
B EmEKREESEAEARK14,920,000
Lo BEHAREHAET—@ARA
U [@ -

L,
iR 1T & ek
MR2017F12A831H @ RITERIRERBHNT S

FEF =N F0.01% £0.385% (20164 : 0.01%
Z0.385% )5t & °
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REMB®RME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

24. TRADE PAYABLES 24. EHE 5 RIE
Trade payables are settled in accordance with the BB SFEDLREREBRE ST - RikE
relevant agreements. An ageing analysis of the R AEBEMENESHIE(RKE B )
Group’s trade payables (by goods receipt date) at REREE D AT T -
the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREETF T
0 — 30 days 0-30& 55,449 58,699
31 — 90 days 31-90K 1,710 8,545
57,159 67,044
Retention payables ERRE S 11,594 5,908
68,753 73,152
Retention payables EHRE£
Due within 1 year 14F (X EI| HA 11,594 5,908
All the retention payables as at 31 December 2017 20174 20165128318 » Fi A B IRE
and 2016 are aged over one year. SRR A —FE-
25. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER 25. c iR - HWEASRER
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS EstEH
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
Accrued wages and staff benefits Bt TENE TEF 12,958 12,336
Other accrued expenses H i EET R 2,369 4,916
Other tax payables Hith eS8 16,294 14,909
Deposits received from customers B REFIZ & 50,000 —
Other payables H fth FE {5018 15,631 4,341
97,252 36,502

26. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 26. Ef—REERIE

The amount due to a director as at 31 December R20165F12A31H ' B —RBREEHIBIEF
2016 represented amount due to Mr. Jiang NEMNBEEARTENKE  ZRXBARBER
Jiangiang which was unsecured, interest-free and B RBHEE-

was fully repaid during the year.
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e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

27. AEIEFH

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREET T
Carrying amount as at 1 January M1A1BEMERAEE - =
Proceeds from issue of corporate %77 A & &% K TS I8
bonds 107,960 =
Exchange differences fEH Z% (1,698) =
Interest expense NSNE T 1,574 =
Interest paid B AT ALE (1,202) =
Carrying amount as at 31 December 7 12H31H & BRHE & 106,634 —
Less: amount due within one year & : R —F R 2 H% &R &
shown under current liabilities BERRIE (19,199) -
Amount shown under non-current 3| & 3E 7 &) & & ) 50E
liabilities 87,435 =
0] Pursuant to the corporate bonds subscription (i) BEARGESFRERHRZ  2rEHH

agreements,

the corporate bonds are

redeemable at any time before maturity at the
Company’s option at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the
corporate bonds plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to the redemption date.

i 'JHHHIJETTETF'EHZE$ TE’\J%E%
BEENRARESANEER100%H) E E
B MEEZEDAHEE R
MAE(mE)ED :
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017412A318 It F &

27. CORPORATE BOND (continued) 27. RRIE % (&)
(i)  Details of the Group’s corporate bonds as at (i) AEBER2017F12A31BHRGEH
31 December 2017 are as follows: BT
Nominal Effective
Face Value Issue date Maturity date interest rate interest rate
H il BTAM IR0 ERHE B A
HK$ per annum per annum
BT s s
6,000,000 21/07/2017 21/07/2019 8.50% 8.50%
2,000,000 28/08/2017 28/08/2018 7.00% 8.30%
10,000,000 05/09/2017 04/09/2019 6.25% 11.86%
10,000,000 05/09/2017 04/09/2019 6.25% 11.86%
3,900,000 27/09/2017 27/09/2018 7.00% 8.01%
5,000,000 28/09/2017 28/09/2019 6.30% 6.60%
1,000,000 03/10/2017 03/10/2018 5.00% 6.06%
1,000,000 04/10/2017 04/10/2018 7.00% 8.08%
2,000,000 18/10/2017 18/10/2018 7.00% 8.08%
5,000,000 02/11/2017 01/11/2020 6.50% 11.84%
5,000,000 02/11/2017 01/11/2020 6.50% 11.84%
1,000,000 02/11/2017 02/11/2019 7.00% 7.31%
1,000,000 03/11/2017 03/11/2018 9.00% 10.10%
1,000,000 14/11/2017 13/11/2019 6.25% 11.86%
3,500,000 14/11/2017 13/11/2019 6.50% 11.84%
5,000,000 16/11/2017 16/11/2025 6.00% 6.16%
10,000,000 20/11/2017 19/11/2022 7.00% 11.34%
10,000,000 20/11/2017 20/11/2025 6.00% 6.16%
10,000,000 22/11/2017 21/11/2022 7.00% 11.34%
500,000 24/11/2017 24/11/2018 2.00% 3.03%
1,000,000 29/11/2017 28/02/2018 6.00% 10.49%
2,000,000 04/12/2017 04/12/2022 6.00% 6.24%
10,000,000 05/12/2017 05/12/2025 5.00% 5.16%
1,000,000 05/12/2017 05/12/2018 7.00% 8.08%
1,000,000 06/12/2017 06/03/2018 4.00% 8.33%
10,000,000 12/12/2017 12/12/2018 6.00% 7.07%
10,000,000 15/12/2017 14/12/2020 6.50% 6.99%
7,000,000 15/12/2017 14/12/2020 6.50% 6.99%
134,900,000
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e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

28. & 15

28. PROVISIONS

At beginning of the year RE)
Addition of provisions NE BB
Reversal of provisions B
At end of the year RER

Provisions for financial guarantees

M REREE
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR F T
6,200 12,196
- 1,404
(5,000) (7,400)
1,200 6,200

Jiangsu Saite Steel Structure Co., Ltd. (“Saite
Steel (Jiangsu)”), a subsidiary of the Group,
and Mr. Jiang Jiangiang, a director of the
Company, provided jointly and severally
financial guarantees to a micro credit entity
HEMHE RN/ NREEFKER A RN Jiangsu,
the PRC, in respect of a loan with an amount
of approximately RMB3,000,000 granted to an
individual, namely, #3757 . Besides, Saite
Steel (Jiangsu) and Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and
two other individuals, namely, #& IE 75 and &
7575, provided jointly and severally financial
guarantees to the same micro credit entity in
respect of a loan of approximately
RMB2,000,000 granted to another individual,
namely, HE. #WIEF and B FEF have
beneficial interest of an entity established in
the PRC, namely, /L# B MIRIZETEFR A
A (*JSBN”). #§IEX, 1§57, MR and JSBN
are independent third parties. The loans were
past due and no settlement was made as at
31 December 2015. The debtors and
guarantors were then sued collectively by the
creditor for the default of payment and
requested to settle the outstanding balance
with interest. A settlement agreement is
subsequently agreed among 18F& 7, MR
and the micro credit entity on the repayment
schedule which #7575 would repay a total
amount of RMB3,500,0000, of which
RMB2,100,000 by the end of December
2016, RMB700,000 by the end of December
2017 and RMB700,000 by the end of
December 2018; and HE would repay a
total amount of RMB1,300,000 by the end of
31 December 2016, RMB500,000 by the end
of 31 December 2017 and RMB500,000
before 31 December 2018. A reversal of
provisions of RMB1,200,000 was made in
respect of the amount settled during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

AEBOHBAG IHEFNEES
RBAal([BHRA&BECIE D EAR
RIEEEEREERXR EERMET
—ZENMALBIEST)HARE
3,000,0007T &) & 7K [A) BT 858 —
NEEEQAREEMBEYEN/NEE
HERDARETBEER LI B
BRI AR CTER) g E It EME M
MAERATBES REFF LR K&
BERIEFS—BENALT(BIHE)
49 A\ R #2,000,0007T ) & 5K A 48 @ &Y
NEEEARREVEIER - BIES
MigFF R —HER BN ELE (B
THBMREIREREARA(IHE
M) BEEEaER - BIEN - BF
F HEBERIGBMHABILE=
7o R2015F12A831H ' i2 £ B R &K
EEE BWRELBE  Bitt - &
B E R A KRBT B RA RER
ARBHERIZEE  BERENREEL
BREF B o HEE BFS HERE/)
HEELAECHERFERB T EE
W B EETHEELSBEA
R #3,500,0007T * £ A 78 52016412
AIK 2 i 8 & AR #2,100,0007C *
2017F12 AR Z AI{EE A K #700,000
TR R2018F12A K 2 AT BB AR
700,0007T : & A E#AR2016F12 7
318 Z I E & A R ¥1,300,0007T * i
2017%F12A31H 2 AT B 8 A R ¥
500,0007T & 722018512 A31H Z A&
# A R¥500,0007T ° B B8 £20174
12A31B It FEHEE 2 FRIA# [0 B B
A R #1,200,0007T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z=2017412A318 It F &

28. PROVISIONS (Continuea)

(i

Saite Steel (Jiangsu) acted as a financial
guarantor to Yixing Hongrui, a shareholder of
the joint venture of the Group, for its
purchases of goods from a supplier of
RMB7,167,000 in aggregate. The balance was
originally past due but it was subsequently
agreed among the involved parties on the
repayment schedule which Yixing Hongrui
would repay approximately RMB1,000,000 on
a monthly installment basis from February
2016 to September 2016. However, Yixing
Hongrui defaulted the payment from February
2016 to September 2016 and a revised
settlement agreement was entered in October
2016 where Yixing Hongrui would repay a
total amount of RMB7,800,000, of which
RMB2,000,000 before 25 October 2016,
RMB2,000,000 before 25 December 2016,
RMB2,000,000 before 31 August 2017 and
RMB1,800,000 before the end of August
2018. In 2017, Yixing Hongrui fully repaid the
remaining amount of RMB3,800,000 and the
relevant provisions for financial guarantees
were fully reversed accordingly.

29. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2017,

the Group has two

(2016: two) short-term borrowings in an aggregate
amount of RMB46,150,000 (2016: RMB80,631,000).

1

On 29 September 2015 and 16 October
2015, the Company entered into loan
agreements for loans amounting to
HK$50,000,000 and HK$40,000,000
(equivalent to RMB44,795,000 and
RMB35,836,000) with an individual and an
entity incorporated in Hong Kong,
respectively, which are both independent third
parties.

The borrowing of HK$50,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB44,795,000) is guaranteed by a
director of the Company, interest bearing at
8% per annum and the loan maturity was
originally on 29 September 2016 and was
subsequently extended to 15 March 2017
and further extended to 31 December 2018.
Effective interest rate is 8% (2016:12.4%) per
annum.

The borrowing of HK$40,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB35,836,000) was unsecured,
interesting bearing at 8% per annum and
repayable on 17 October 2017. The amount
was fully settled during the year.

In November 2017, the Group entered into a
loan agreement for a loan amounting to
RMB4,500,000 with a bank. The borrowing is
guaranteed by two directors of the Company,
four other individuals and entities, interest
bearing at 4.35% per annum and repayable
on 27 November 2018. Effective interest rate
is 4.35% per annum.

China Saite Group Company Limited FE&EFEEHRE QG
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

30. EEERIEEF

Withholding tax on
undistributed

earnings
KoyikBAGEDH
RMB’000
AR Tt
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 7201641 A1H LA K20164F &
and 2017 20174F12A31H 92,116

According to a joint circular of the Ministry of
Finance and State Administration of Taxation — Cai
Shui 2008 No. 1, dividend distributed out of the
profits generated by subsidiaries established in the
PRC to “non PRC-resident” investors since
1 January 2008 shall be subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax and tax payment to be withheld by the
PRC entity pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the
Income Tax Law Concerning Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and Article 91
of the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the
Income Tax Law for Enterprises with Foreign
Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises. At
31 December 2017, deferred taxation has not been
provided in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately RMB880,317,000 (2016:
RMB622,790,000) as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

BEVFERIEBERREABRHBARAN —
B $2008515% - §20084E1 A1H #£ 1§ 7 &
BB AR EANEREARSE DR
FEHRBERIEEEEHMPECEMNS
o WAREBIINERECEMINECEMEH
EBIRTIE AR INE IR B D ¥ FIINE 1 %
RSB MBI FEoEh P E T BN
Ko R2017F12A31H » AR AN & B B 4942
FIEOTREE AR SER =8
B ERA] AR AL - I EREGE
MEREBTPENBRRZARFHARE
880,317,0007T (20164 : A K #622,790,000
TO) B MR R EREEERE -

Annual Report 2017 =% — t F F

135



136

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMB®RME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

30. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
(Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately RMB68,782,000 (2016:
RMB41,076,000) available for offsetting against
future taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such losses due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
unused tax losses may be carried forward

30. EEFIBEE B (&)

201756124318 - A& B H AR B A MR
518 4 & A R #68,782,0007T (20164 © A
R #41,076,0007T) + 0] FA{EHE 88 R R FERR T
AR AREEBMAKRBIRIR WAL
EVERZEEERREEHIEEE - K3
BBk ErERAEE -

indefinitely.
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. R &
Number of Shown in the
Shares at consolidated
HK$0.10 financial
per share Amount statements
SR E{E0.10& T GEUBRR
B R 4 8 B &8 AR &HE
HK$’000 RMB’000
FH&T AR T T
Authorised: ERE :
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 A1H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Increase of authorised share V5 TE B A 3 hn (BfE &%)
capital (note i) 45,000,000,000 4,500,000
At 31 December 2016 and M2016F12A318 &k
31 December 2017 2017412 A31H 50,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHYRE:
At 1 January 2016 R20164F1 A1H 2,038,000,000 203,800 161,268
Issue of new Shares (note ii) AR AT (BT EEii) 203,800,000 20,380 18,259
At 31 December 2016 201612 A31H 2,241,800,000 224,180 179,527
Issue of Shares as part of the {EAKBAIHHEEREZ
consideration for the acquisition &% X8 317 % (%
of available-for-sale investment (B #Eiii )
(note iii) 88,947,935 8,895 7,883
At 31 December 2017 201712 A31H 2,330,747,935 233,075 187,410
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e B RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

On 20 May 2016, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$500,000,000 to
HK$5,000,000,000 by the creation of the additional
45,000,000,000 new Shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 28 December 2016, the Company issued
203,800,000 new Shares pursuant to a share
subscription agreement entered into between the
Company and Five Seasons XIV Limited on
12 December 2016 at a subscription price of
HK$0.52 per share (with reference to the closing
market price of HK$0.56 per share). The issue of
new Shares raised a total capital of
HK$105,976,000 (equivalent to RMB94,944,000).
These new Shares rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing Shares.

The directors were of the view that upon the
subscription, the Group can (i) raise capital for it to
facilitate its long-term development and further
strengthen its financial position and to use the
funds for general working capital purpose; and (ii)
bring in a renowned investor with strong financial
resources and extensive business network including
but not limited to areas of cooperation in property
development and green building which will in turn
bring strategic value to the Group.

During the current year, the Group issued
88,947,935 new Shares for the acquisition of
available-for-sale investment at the market price of
HK$0.58 per share at the completion date as
disclosed in note 19, with corresponding increase
of share capital at RMB7,883,000 and an increase
of share premium at RMB37,841,000. These new
shares rank pari passu in all respects with the
existing Shares.

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 11 October 2013, the Company conditionally
adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed by its then
shareholders on 11 October 2013 for the primary
purpose of the providing incentives or rewards to
eligible employees, non-executive directors of the
Company and other selected participants. The
adoption of the Scheme became unconditional upon
the listing of the Company on 1 November 2013.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and

2016,

there were no share options were granted,

exercised or outstanding under the Scheme.

31. RA& (&)

B 3

(i) R20165F5H208 + AR A KA ERAE B
1 3% %A 9145,000,000,000% & A% E {B0.1078
JC B9 # A% 5 $500,000,0005% 7T # o0 =
5,000,000,000/% JT °

(ii) R2016F12H28H + &x & 7] R & HFive
Seasons XIV Limited¥2016412 812H 5]
SRR RE R 0 ARBEER0.528 T
(22l mmES IR0.56% JT) » B 1T
2083,800,0008% #7 i 1 1T R D B & 2
4 & /105,976,000 ;L (FHE R A R ¥
94,944,0007T) * % EF KM ER B M E
EFEZERSER -

EERR/RABBEREK  NEEA()
RESEES AT EERERLE
—HMBEBBAN > A ESBIE
—REEES RS ARBEEY
BERMEZEBHBHMNBILEE
(BREMNRRYEER RS EEEN
%Tﬁ%)%ﬁ%K%E%%W%E

(i) IR - RAFE - AEE A
Bl SR E - R B B ER0.5878
JC.2 T {8 3£1788,047 9350% ¥ ik 15 » EEH AL
7K K8 FE 3 00 A R #57,883,0007T M A% 17 i (B
#hn A R #37,841,0007T ° % & %17 £23R
ERNESHFEZAR SRR -

32. BIREST &

R2013F 108118 + A ARIBEAQFE K
IR A2013F10A11BE BB —ERZER
KGR MERRETE ([FFE])  EEBER
ARABARERESR  FERTES RHEMKEH
R AR MBS HRE) - TR AR Al R2013
FU1A1B LT - 58 2 WM B EGEE -

B 220174 K2016F12A31H L FE » &
BREREBEFEHFEDL BITEHHKRT
fF o
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33.

34.

Bt 35 B AR B A

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debts, which includes amount due to a director,
corporate bonds and short-term borrowings
disclosed in notes 26, 27 and 29, respectively, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital, share premium, reserves and retained
profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account
the cost of capital and the risk associated with the
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through payment of dividend, new Shares
issue as well as the issue of new debt or
repayment of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

3. EXA A RER

AEBERHEER  UBRARAEENEEK
ARERE  UWEBEEFEESREL &
EFERRREREADR - AEEHER
REEBEFERERTTE -

AREENEALBOEFEL EPaED
BRI 5E26 ~ 27 M2 M EN —BEE XK
B AREFEFEREHERGIRES MRS
EEYEARABEARLER(BER
AN RRDEE - BERRBRA) -

ARAREERFEEEEHNELAERE Lg
ZEEARAREERNBHENEAR - NEHE
BB IRE - BITH RO RETHESL
EERFEHFEOEBRELERE -

3. £ T A

(a) &I AEH

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETIT
Financial assets SRIEE
Loans and receivables (including & 3k & Ji& Uk 5018
cash and cash equivalents) (BREREEBESE
BY) 2,478,668 2,191,522
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 53,928 -
Financial liabilities SRER
Amortised cost 5 AR 238,368 169,534
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

The Group’s major financial instruments
include available-for-sale investments, trade
receivables, other receivables, bank balances
and cash, trade payables, other payables,
amount due to a director, corporate bonds,
short-term borrowings and financial guarantee
contracts.

Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Certain transactions of the Group are
denominated in HK$ which is different from
the functional currency of the relevant group
entities i.e. RMB, which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and (liabilities) denominated in HK$ at
the end of the reporting period are as

3. €® T A

(%)

AEBNIZSRIABEAIHEE
&ﬁ\ﬁ%%%ﬂ%%ﬁlﬁ~ﬁmﬁ'§uﬂz?’x

BRTESKLMES ENEZR
I m&ﬁ RIECEN—REER
E NRES RYEERRTBER
U
ZECRTEMNFBEERERSMHE -
HZESMmTAAENRAKRBIETS
[2 B (FNEE R B K FI R ELBR) ~ 5 B R

|§I/\ MrEghEe Rk - TXH BB
AR EZERROBE BEEEESE
MERZFRME  AREREEE B
KEEE fE i o

REBEBNE TR HAETE M
ATRAERSEERDERR (AR
B ASNNEE o R I AR [ R N B
[ B

RmERRAETHENETEE DB
BER

(BE)WEREEWNT

follows:
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR F T
Bank balances RITHE B2 561 44,072
Other payables H h JE 7 3IE (6,676) (3,191)
Amount due to a director B —REERE - (5,210)
Short-term borrowings HHER (41,650) (80,631)
Corporate bonds — due within NAESF — R—FR
one year Elp: (19,199) —
Corporate bonds — due after REES — R—F&
one year EI| HA (87,435) —
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. Management
manages its foreign currency risk by
monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rate and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in
RMB against HK$. A 5% sensitivity rate
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% change in foreign currency rate. A
positive number below indicates an increase
in profit where RMB strengthen 5% against
HK$. For a 5% weakening of RMB against
HK$, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit for the year.

3. £ T A (&)

MR EEEZERBUR(

(b)

AEBEBEAYEERETAITETAS
R PEMAENEERR - EBE
i 38 B 5 M FE R oy B B IR H SN
R IEREFTEREBELHHPEKR
SN LR o

TRHALAEEHARBLETLIE
K B2 (E5%H) 8 & JE - 8 & JE tE &5%
TyE IR E R SMNEE K5 IR Al g B
TEH B RE (G © BURE 2 T 2 B3 A5
BAENREEERIRR  YRBE
HIRIRENINEE R BB FBILE - T
REBBTRIWMEARBLETLHE
5% @ RIBFIE N - WARE L ABTR
1B5% HFERNBNBERRNEEF
@ .

FRAF

Profit for the year

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
7,720 2,248

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the foreign
currency risk inherent as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the relevant year.

China Saite Group Company Limited FEFEFEE AR QA
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances (see note 23 for details). The Group
does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
bank balances is detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the interest
rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China
arising from the Group’s bank balances.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank balances at the
end of each reporting period.

The analysis is prepared assuming the
variable-rate bank balances outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 25 basic point (2016:
25 basic points) increase or decrease for
bank balances is used represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on bank balances had been
25 basis points (2016: 25 basic points) higher
and all other variables were held constant, a
positive number below indicates an increase
in profit for the year.

Increase in profit for the year

F A& FE N

3. @ T B (&)

AREEESMIERTEBORS
REFEAB (BT - B2 AHE
23) o 7 % B 3 % 7 % ¥ 3% BOR © 4
M EEEEERALARLASEES
% 8 0 B AR £ B -

252 [ /0 R 17 45 R TE R B A 3K L B R
BERAAMERDE SRR EE—
e ARENRSREMNEXEBREE
EPREAREBRRTEREENDE
ARRITHARM KK -

VAT 8RR E 0 AT Th#50% BARTT A R0
% o B R P IE i B0 N R LB BB E e

DT BRI & A B A R )T 8
RATEE BN B EEE SR EE - BB
17t & 4 0 58 2508 2 %
(2016% : 2506 % &) A 5 12 /B ¥ 7 %
=LE 2 IR

fisd $R 17 4% B8R A & |- FHo518 B (2016
Fo6ERE) MAMAEMEEHER
& BT RIESBRFARNIEM -

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR T
1,420 1,470
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the interest
rate risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

The Group also exposes to fair value interest
rate risk, which primarily relates to the
Group’s fixed rate short-term borrowings and
corporate bonds. After reviewing the Group’s
exposure for the time being, the Group did
not enter into any arrangements to minimise
this interest rate risk. Management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider
entering into appropriate hedging transactions
should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group arising
from the carrying amount of the respect
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position
due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties.

China Saite Group Company Limited FE&EFEEHRE QG
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75 5% [ 75 [ e o 22 BN R (B E A R
RPERRARBESFEBORFERN
TR - EASE R E K AHEEERD
B2 1R - 7N 5 1830 4 ) 5E 17 %2 BF A
FREZNEZAR EEEAEEET
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

The credit risk of the Group is concentrated
on trade receivables from the Group’s five
largest customers at 31 December 2017
amounting to approximately RMB854,581,000
(2016: RMB633,167,000) and accounted for
50% (2016: 45%) of the Group’s total trade
receivables before allowance of doubtful
debts. These five largest customers include
state-owned enterprises and private limited
companies registered and operated in the
PRC. They are mainly the main contractors of
construction projects. In order to minimise the
credit risk, management continuously monitors
the level of exposure by frequent review of
the credit evaluation of the financial condition
and credit quality of its customers to ensure
that prompt actions will be taken to lower
exposure. In addition, management reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the credit risk of the Group is
significantly reduced.

Management of the Group considers that the
credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with good
reputation.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

3. @ T B (&)

AEENGEERRETRKELIEE
AARPREWE S FKIE - R2017F
12A31H  RERAAEZEFHNEKES
RIE A H A R #854,581,0007T (2016
£ AR#¥633,167,0007T) @ (h A %EE
RNk RERBERTREKRE S IEE
%8 M)50% (20164 : 45% ) e 32 & H K
EEREEREAMEECENEE
ERFAAERRAR - FEETEREZR
HEMEBABRE - Bi5EERERR
EZRE EEEERBEERNEARF
MR REEEEZNEEFTMG K
SE R R ETE R R B A KTE - EERED
B SR BT B - Rk 1K P T R AD R B o bt
Sh BEEEERSREDHRBT S E
BIFEWE 5 KIERH ] Y E© 5 - R
AU E S EEL R AR ERSE
BE-UmME ARAIEZEREARN
EEMNEERRKRE REBEE-

AREERERARDE S MEEA
2 AR EANHTHARERFNE
7 -

EERBESRRIE  AREER
kgRHHe B eSBENERE
RETEHKE  REHRAEEREE
EEE WRLPBHSRERDHF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

The following table details the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

34. €@t T B ()

TRANAEBEFTESREBEEOF
HeamEB e TROREBESBEBENR
FTHRASRERE ZEcBEED
BREAEERAEANKOKERRD

cash flows of financial liabilities based on the ¥ o
earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.
Weighted
average On demand
effective or less Total
interest than 3 3-6 6 months 1-5  undiscounted Carrying
rate months months -1 year years cash flows amount
MEFY  BRERR =% REREZE -E AFBERS
BR#E =Z@EARK ~fEA - RE HEEE MREE
%  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000
% ARBTT ARETT ARETE ARETR ARETT ARBTR
As at 31 December 2017 #20174£128318
Trade payables BB SHE - 60,975 5,850 1,928 - 68,753 68,753
Other payables H fth fE 3B - 15,631 - N - 15,631 15,631
Short-term borrowings BHER 7.64 42,483 - 4,696 - 47,179 46,150
Corporate bonds DREH 8.70 3,278 1,939 21,566 110,256 137,039 106,634
Financial guarantee contracts BBEEREN - - - 1,200 - 1,200 1,200
122,367 7,789 29,390 110,256 269,802 238,368
As at 31 December 2016 #20165128318
Trade payables ERESHE = 68,850 3,180 1,122 = 73,152 73,152
Other payables Hi ez = 4,341 — — — 4,341 4,34
Short-term borrowings BHER 9.97 57,646 19,598 8,959 = 86,203 80,631
Amount due to a director Eff—2EZHE = 5,210 = = = 5210 5,210
Financial guarantee contracts HBEREN = = = 3,200 3,000 6,200 6,200
136,047 22,778 13,281 3,000 175,106 169,534

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs
in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their corresponding fair values.

China Saite Group Company Limited FE&EFEEHRE QG
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36.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific percentage of the total
monthly basic salaries to the retirement benefit
schemes. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to
make the required contributions under the
schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs (capped at HK$1,500 per month with
effect from 1 June 2014) of each individual
employee to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The retirement benefit contributions of the directors
of the Company and staffs for the year end are
stated in notes 10 and 13 respectively.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or the future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statements of
cash flows from financing activities.

35.

36.

R E R G &

ARBRF BRI ERRNES BT E
BT E R B K E IR R KR MEH B HOK B o
MBARAZRSAEAECRBNIEEAD
LE TRV R IR AR I 5 81 5K o 28 52 B AR IR AR 7
AN - B E/REBEZEELRERN

K o

AEBNAEEREEREEREWNIT —HA
FlEAEETE B CEEHAEEEE
PHEE VYHEFSAEZHZESRHE - A
SEEBIREAIESMREIEKANNSY% (&
At 2 E R A&1,500% T » B2014F6H1H
REB)IEATEHIR - MEB IMBEKT S
AR E B o

ARBEERBTRFEARKERNHERD
A ER R M FE10K18

METHEENEBYHER

TRAMANEBRELZHELNBEZD
BEASLIRCEY BRETDELNE
BERARERETARKRRERESENAE
BGRaRenERANBEAREERDELR

BenENAE-

Amount
Short-term  Corporate due to Interest

borrowings bonds a director payable Total

FEft—2&
BHER 28FF EFRE EHGHE @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2017 R2017%F1A1R 80,631 = 5,210 = 85,841
Financing cash flows RERERE (29,252) 106,758 (5,210) (5,782) 66,514
Finance cost incurred during the year 4 /A1 & 4 #) 81 75 i & = 1,574 = 5,782 7,356
Exchange differences ERER (5,229) (1,698) = = (6,927)
At 31 December 2017 20179128318 46,150 106,634 = = 152,784
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

37. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the current year, the Group acquired
available-for-sale investments at the fair value of
consideration of RMB51,928,000 (2016: nil) in which
an amount of RMB45,724,000 (2016: nil) was
attributable to issue of new Shares.

38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At 31 December 2017, the Group had commitment
for future minimum lease payment under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of rented

37. FEXBER S

RAFE AEENUREBEAFEARE
51,928,0007T (20164F : &) Y& m] it 1) £ 1%
& Hep & 58 A R#45,724,007T (20164 :
)RR EITHRG -

KREHERIE
AEBEAEAEA
R2017%F 128318 » REERER T 7 HR
FHMmEEEEME BB RS T A #

HA L HE A B AR R REEEFIAAEMN
T

38.

premises and plant and machinery which fall due as
follows:
2016
20164
RMB’000
AR T T
Premises L7E S
Within one year —F R 3,009 5,064
In the second to third year inclusive % — %% =4
(BEERME) 2,314 864
5,323 5,928

The leases of the Group are negotiated for terms
ranging from one to three years at fixed rental.

The Group as lessor

Machinery rental income earned during the year was
approximately RMB2,154,000 (2016:
RMB2,144,000). The machinery held have
committed tenants for the next three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
contracted with a tenant for the following future
minimum lease payments:

AEEHERETHESZE  HENTE—2=
=fF-

AEEEFERHEA
FAMBRBRBESBEERANDBARE

2,154,0007T (20164F : A R #2,144,0007T) °
B s WMENAK=FEERFL &M -

RBEHR AEECEBLH TIRREK

Machinery 23
Within one year —FR
In the second to third year inclusive % - F % =4

(BHREREMF)

EREREETL -
2017 2016
20174 20164F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR T
2,092 1,890
3,660 —
5,752 1,890
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A M RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; 2017412 A318 It F /&

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

39.

BAREE

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AREET T
Capital expenditure authorised but LA N &IBH E REE K54
contracted for in respect of: MEARAS :
— Acquisition of available-for-sale ~ — WA H T E L@ EE
financial asset - 6,271

— Acquisition of property, plant
and equipment

— WEmE - BB MR

24,593 —

PLEDGED ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, certain machineries of
Saite Steel (Jiangsu) with a carrying amount of
RMB10,252,000 were pledged against a banking
facility of RMB18,630,000 granted to L &kl 7 5 (R
Z AR A F(“Ounuo”), an independent third party.
As at 31 December 2016, such facility is utilised by
Ounuo at the amount RMB3,500,000. The pledge
was released during the year.

RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of the directors and other
members of key management during the year was
as follows:

40.

41.

EERA

R2016F12A831H BEHMABCLER) &
TEREEA A R¥10,252,0007T 2 ## 2 1E
AETEBYEZAIHBHRRARRBERA
A ([B ) 2 AR %18,630,0007T 2 8 17 &t
B 7K o 2016512 A31 8 » sZ @l B B
= 2 A R #3,500,0007T © 3% K #7 4F A &
R o

N

FAEALXRS
TEEBARNHH

FRN BERFTEEEASHAMAKE K F
LI

74 H3 48 A
RARE I ET 8 43K

Short-term benefits
Contributions to retirement benefit
scheme

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT
4,960 3,804

71 59

5,031 3,863
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 42. XA F B BEMRR R HE R
POSITION AND RESERVES OF
THE COMPANY

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREF T
Non-current asset ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR RIEE 1,175,504 730,004
Current assets mEEE
Other receivables and prepayments £ ftb & U 3% 18 & T8 (- 7K 1A 650 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE WM B A Rl 5K E 67,130 380,612
Bank balances RATHE R 561 41,196
68,341 421,808
Current liabilities mEBBEE
Other payables and accruals HthENRERETEA 6,523 8,098
Short-term borrowings EEHEX 41,650 80,631
Corporate bonds — due within AREHF-—R—FANEH
one year 19,199 —
67,372 88,729
Net current assets REBEEFE 969 333,079
Total assets less current BEERREBER
liabilities 1,176,473 1,063,083
Non-current liability EFHER
Corporate bonds — due after AREHF —R—F&H
one year 87,435 -
1,089,038 1,063,083
Capital and reserves BEXRGE
Share capital (see note 31) & S (R B 5E31) 187,410 179,527
Share premium and reserves R% 17 ' (8 M I+ 1 901,628 883,556
Total equity i 1,089,038 1,063,083

China Saite Group Company Limited FEFEFEE AR QA
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

42. XA R B BAR R K & g)
POSITION AND RESERVES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)
Share Share Capital Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
EEx BORE BEREE RitEsHE @st
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ETT AR®TT ARBTT ARET
At 1 January 2016 »2016F1 818 161,268 429,597 464,556 (31,685) 1,023,736
Loss and total comprehensive  F R E1E K&
expense for the year THERASERE = = = (22,989) (22,989)
Final dividend paid for the year B 3 {1 & £2015%F
ended 31 December 2015 12A31HIEFEZ
(note 14) REVRR B (HisE14) _ (32,608) = = (32,608)
Issued of new Shares (note 31)  Z17# A% 1 (B 5£31) 18,259 76,685 = — 94,944
At 31 December 2016 »20164F12H831H 179,527 473,674 464,556 (54,674) 1,063,083
Loss and total comprehensive A EE K
expense for the year 2HEHRTEE = = = (19,769) (19,769)
Issued of new Shares (note 31) 21T ¥ 5 (Bf5E31) 7,883 37,841 — 45,724
At 31 December 2017 R2017%F12A31H 187,410 511,515 464,556 (74,443) 1,089,038
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &; £2017412A318 It F &

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. AR R EEMBATMNFEE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Equity interest
attributable to
the Company

Issued and fully paid share
capital/registered capital

Principal activities

MR AAE EEITRAERE
M B A S & B 3L B FE 15 B 4 dMHEF TEEH
2017 2016
20175 PlGE3
Modern Day Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100% 100%  Ordinary shares Investment holding
HK$1,000,000
ZHERBRAE EiE 100%  100% & i®/%1,000,000/% 7T REER
China Saite (Overseas) Company  British Virgin 100% 100%  Ordinary share Investment holding
Limited Islands US$1
HEERFOBINBRAA REBELHES 100%  100% E@WRIET REZER
China Saite (H.K.) Company Hong Kong 100% 100%  Ordinary share Investment holding
Limited HK$1
FEER(EE)ERAA B 100%  100% E@WRIBTT REER
Yixing City Zhicheng Consultation the PRC 100% 100% Registered capital Investment holding
Company Limited (note a) RMB16,667,000
Paid-up capital RMB16,667,000
HEEMERBAGRRAA i 100%  100% & A~ A K #16,667,0007C REZER
(Pt &ta) B H &R AR¥16,667,0007T
Jiangsu Saite Steel Structure the PRC 100% 100% Registered capital Construction of steel
Co., Ltd. (note b) RMB399,600,000 structure and
Paid-up capital RMB341,367,000 prefabricated
construction projects
IHEREEBERAR i 100%  100% aEft & A& AK%399,600,0000r AR LEAIEBHES
(P =Eb) B 5& A AR #341,367,0007T FEMBEERET
Jiangsu Qifeng New Building the PRC 100% 100% Registered capital Prefabricated
Materials Company Limited RMB197,000,000 construction projects
(note ¢) Paid-up capital RMB137,000,000
TEEEBHEEMER AR i 100%  100% &R ARK197,000000r FEREHREEE
(Pt &Ec) B 5& A AR #137,000,0007T
Anhui Saite New Building the PRC 100% 100% Registered capital Prefabricated
Materials Company Limited RMB60,000,000 construction projects
(note d) Paid-up capital RMB22,000,000
RHERMAEMERAA i 100%  100% & fft & & A K #60,000,0007T REBHREER
(Pt 3Ed) B #& A AR #22,000,0007T
Notes: i =F -

(@) The entity is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
established in the PRC. The English name is for

translation purpose.

@ REBARPTEKRUMNIIFEEAELE R
XEREEDERE -

(o) The entity is a sino-foreign equity joint venture (b) ZERBARPEKINFINEERED
established in the PRC. The English name is for ¥ RBVEZBEEREAS -

translation purpose.
(c) The entity
translation purpose.
(d) The entity

translation purpose.

is a wholly sino-owned enterprise
established in the PRC. The English name is for

is a wholly sino-owned enterprise
established in the PRC. The English name is for

China Saite Group Company Limited FE&EFEEHRE QG
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & 20174128318 I F &

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the vyear or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities at the end of the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On 31 January 2018, the Company issued
guaranteed fixed rate private bonds with aggregate
nominal value of USD32,000,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB202,684,800) which carry fixed
interest of 10.5% per annum (interest payable semi-
annually in arrears) and will be fully repayable by
31 January 2019. Each bondholder will have the
right, at its option, to require the Company to
repurchase for cash all of its bond, or any portion
of the principal amount on each date that is 30
days after the Company furnishes or is required to
furnish (whichever is earlier) to the bondholders its
financial statements (each such date, the ‘‘Put
Option Date’). The Company will be required to
repurchase any outstanding principal amount of the
bonds for which a bondholder delivers a written
repurchase notice. The repurchase price the
Company is required to pay will be equal to 100%
of the principal amount of the bond for repurchase,
plus any accrued but unpaid interest up to, but
excluding, the Put Option Date.

43. KRB X EMEB A RINFE

(&)

BEEZRR LRAIAXRANHBAREE
FEAFERESARAEEEEFENE
Ry - EEZR/HINE MM E AR FE
SREBRIUE -

BEMNBRRARFRETERNERKES

44. REHWREEE

R2018F1A31H A A A % 17 £ @ &
32,000,000 7T (8 E 1 49 A R #202,684,800
TN EEREEANELERSS  BEEF
FIEA10.5%T B (FIBEBF+FIN—R) &
15 R2019F1AS1HRIBEEE - SBEHFF
BEABEREEEZERARBRAR B MAESF
BEAREBREETREUREEZEAE)H
PSR L MI0BEZ B (FEHAIREH
R BEeBELOEMEEFKALEN
E@ED c RRBBBEREEFFEEARR
/= M 8 BB A1 FT K B9 (0] 1) oK (B iR & 5
ZARCHE c ARRIAZNWERERAZX
O ES KNS EENI00% @ I HE 2 R oh
B (BT BIEZE) B E A EaHE MRS
B F B o
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Five-Year Financial Summary

LFEMBEHME

SUMMARY FINANCIAL MBEERBE
INFORMATION
A summary of the published results and of the assets and 7N 5 B e DA TS BT 5 B 3 B 2 4R B 0 Bl (8 B I
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years FEZEAMERBEEERBBEMEZNOT ¢
prepared on the basis set out in the note below is as
follows:
Results E
Year Ended 31 December
BE12A3IBLEEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20175 20164 20155 20144 20135

GVGHOLE RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
INdiRgr AERETT ARETRT ARBTI ARETR

Revenue g 1,411,745 1,650,760 1,834,664 1,660,285 1,427,185
Cost of sales 35 & AR (1,051,837) (1,222,468) (1,321,827) (1,165,394) (946,025)
Gross profit e 359,908 428,292 512,837 494,891 481,160
Other income H i A 9,985 9,737 6,373 8,306 5,934
Other gains or losses, net H s EEFE (7,399) (6,608) — — —
Selling and distribution HEREBHASL

expense (4,093) 2,107) (9,585) (3,979) (2,246)
Administrative expense THHAX (37,233) (31,585) (59,918) (40,582) (21,085)
Other expense H % - = = = (20,255)
Finance costs B 75 A AR (7,356) (6,554) (1,343) — -
Share of profit a joint venture 216 B & 1 & & 7 409 502 — — —
Profit before tax B 75t BT & F 314,221 391,677 448,364 458,636 443,508
Income tax expense FTRAx (87,021) (108,408) (122,461) (148,938) (149,486)

Total comprehensive income  F A% WA %8

for the year 227,200 288,269 325,903 309,698 294,022
Earnings per share BRAF
Basic (RMB cents) ERNARED) 9.77 14.13 17.53 19.36 23.21
Diluted (RMB cents) BHARED) N/AF#ER NATEH 1751 NAT#EA NATEHR
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
Year Ended 31 December
HE12AMBILEFE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20174 20164 20154 20144 20135

GVGHGOE RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
IR AERETT ARBTRIT ARBTI ARETR

Non-current assets FERBEE 484,998 378,447 395,817 232,527 79,140
Current assets mEEE 2,572,692 2,313,889 1,928,454 1,428,050 1,189,600
Current liabilities mEaE (269,566) (264,571) (247,111) (285,963) (142,782)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (179,551) (92,116) (92,116) (92,116) (64,408)
Total equity e 2,608,573  2,335649 1,985,044 1,282,498 1,061,550
For the purpose of this report, “*" denotes an official English BABREMS [ RREFRENESR -
translation.
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